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NAEEFR
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Corporate Information
NAEEFR

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
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Central, Hong Kong
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Cayman Islands
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Hong Kong
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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China CITIC Bank International Limited
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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE
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Major Accomplishments

KSR

2017
—E—+%

April
4A

July
78

Bright Smart never stops expanding its business. It
relocated the existing sales and customer service centre
from the 27th floor of Wing On House that it rented to the
23rd floor owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman of the
Group).

BT BHEBER  BRENHEERZTFREE - Bk
LZHREEARE27TENERAMT - MBESERREEEF
BEXMEEBENYE

The Group set a precedent of holding the first large-scale
outdoor investment seminar in Hong Kong at World Trade
Plaza in Causeway Bay, a hotspot with high pedestrian
flow in Hong Kong Island. The event attracted more than
one thousand audiences at the plaza and more than ten
thousand audiences watching its live stream online.
RABBSARGETROBLEEETOBRITREFEK
BFIMRERBE  RelBTENERIISLFE - B8
BRRE RSB EER

The Group had the honour of being selected by
the Stock Exchange as one of the shares in the
“Closing Auction Session”.
REELEEBIZHMAN W HRER 5
f&in 2 —

In order to meet the needs of clients from all
walks of life, the Group launched “BMB (HK) Gold
Futures” and “US Dollar (HK) Gold Futures”. Both
new and existing clients can enjoy commission-
free concessions during the promotion period,
and investors are provided with more diversified
trading, hedging and risk management tools.
RME—BREFPTE  HHUIARK(EB)®=H
BIRET(EB)E2HE ] EEHNHETFARZEMER  RREFRHESZ TR
2 HHLEREETA

The Group organised “Futures e Shares Convergence Summit” ({Hi e IR[EE S & &)) at the
Exchange Auditorium of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The summit analyzed the latest trends
in the market and unique investment techniques. Owning to overwhelming responses, additional
sessions were held to serve more clients.

REBZXZERENENKE « RERSES)  REFIINMMS&ZNEL R ZBRKREL
15 REZNHAZ - F-EMMASEUARBESER
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Major Accomplishments
A

August
8H

° With a safe, reliable, speedy and stable securities trading mobile APP, the Group won the
award of “Software and Applications — Outstanding Securities Trading Mobile APP” granted

by Metro Broadcast and The Chamber of H.K.

Computer Industry.

BEZEAIE  REBTHNBLFRHFHEN - K

SEKXENNEAREBEMPAEREN TG R

ERRABR—REESFRHFHEN KT

September

9R

° In order to show its appreciation for the continued support of its clients and partners, the
Group booked the whole theatre in MCL JP Cinema in Causeway Bay for two consecutive
days and invited more than 4,000 clients
to enjoy international famous movies for
free
REWPEP REFEKE—BEEHREEN
EREF - NREBEEMR AN INEE
LRPFRBSEE RIS - RE4,0008F
PR BB AEER

° U.K. stock trading service has been
newly launched to cater to the needs of
a wide range of clients.
MBRERERZRE - UmEEZH
BRERE

RABSEREMABAF | =T L/ —/\FFH 5



Major Accomplishments
A

October
10H

o The Group always stands out from its peers.
On 16 October, the Group held a press
conference on “2018 Investment Advices for
Retail Investors and Prospects for Hong Kong
Stock Market” (20188 Fi%B &AM B
FEZFIHE) , and was interviewed by various
media organisations in Hong Kong. The
forward-looking remarks were widely reported

by the media and caused widespread public
responses.

BA BARRE - R+ A+NBRIK2018MFIREBENBRESB AR )LES - B2BE
HHE LR - IS mEFEERZRE - WalRARAZEE

November
117

o In recognition of its capabilities, the Group has
been granted the “Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprise Award” by Economic Digest for
six consecutive years, and “Listed Company
Award of Excellence 2017” by Hong Kong
Economic Journal and PR ASIA.
EEANFRES(RBE-B)REITBRLED

[20178EH ETRE] IR BHEXSTE

o The Group launched iron ore futures contract trading services for the first time, providing
customers with more diversified investment products.

BRELEBEANEAORSRE  REFREESZTIENREERTA

6 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Major Accomplishments

A=

2018

—B-N\F

January

18

Bright Smart won numerous awards such as the -
“Outstanding Brokerage Company 2017” at the
“15th China’s Financial Annual Champion Awards” by
Hexun.com, a famous financial website in China,
giving great encouragement to the Group’s business
development, corporate management and all staff.

W 75 5 B ERR R - SRIERBINE & M BRI AE)
BmENE+RhEPEMERAEE I EIFERSS
BAE  WAKEEKER CEEBREBETIARAT
TUN:O 3

The Group has been enthusiastic and supportive
towards charitable activities and concerning social
issues. By sponsoring the “Joyful Charity Run” event
organised by Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation for 7
consecutive years, public understanding and concerns
towards emotional disease have been aroused.
AEE—RRBRL AR REIHEHE  EELFRNE
B[ DBITHAEES BB OEK « BESIZS
MRS - LR S A REEE RN T KT

The Group tried to break new ground by holding a
large-scale cross-industry investment seminar on
“Stocks, Properties and Shops Big Era” ( (f e 12 e
AR ) ) and “Prediction of Luck in the Year of
Dogs by Six Famous Experts” (MFITAE ;SAHG
KB KE) | inviting experts from various sectors to
analyse the investment trends in stocks, properties and
shops in Hong Kong from the perspectives of individual
enterprise, macroeconomics and fengshui.
REBBERITBRES - BREIR o 18 o FHARK)E
CRFITRE RABREFBKRE)RBKREERE  BFESRAERREERIRE - B8
KEBAESTEER - 18 - mHED

SYLYEE

To show our gratitude to our staff’s dedication and contribution, the Group distributed
a bonus of approximately HK$40 million to all employees. Staff with most outstanding
performance even received a competitive bonus payment of more than 15 months of salary.
MBEAMTEETRATERET  AFRRKEMCEIFZBRETRAEANEBETE
AL AEJHEIRNENE N RER

BAESEMRERRAF | -t/ \FFH 7



Major Accomplishments
A=

March
3H
e The Group successfully developed the “#24 & 3R
Z” mobile APP, enabling clients to open accounts
online without leaving home. The Group also invested a
significant amount for promotional offers to expand the
customer base.
AEBXRYRBERABEALE]  BXFPETH
F - ogBEn8ERP  AEEEREERIEEE
S EAERETR

° During the Chinese New Year, the Group booked the
whole theater of MCL JP Cinema in Causeway Bay for
four days and invited more than 8,000 clients, business
partners and the media to enjoy movies, wishing
everyone wealthy for lifetime and free from worries
for generations and appreciating their support to the
Group.
AEEEZRBNENRBLERAKRES R %
E H - BFEEB000EEF aENHRERBESE

WS U—tEER KREE - AEHELHAK
%.E’]i%

° The Group is committed to participating in charity activities and serving the society. It jointly
organised the “Bright Smart Spring Festival Reunion” charity luncheon with Louis Mak
Charitable Foundation and Sik Sik Yuen, and fully sponsored more than 200 elderlies for free
lunch and delivered warmest blessings to them.

BN2RAELTHRBELS Eﬁiﬂi'&ﬁ?f%%i%ﬁ IMEECRBN RS HEEERE X
%—TE 2EEYEFAMBERE - RUFIE RIGE

o Bright Smart has always been adhering to the concept of “parallel development of commercial
and charitable businesses” and actively encourages its employees to take part in volunteer
services. Since 2011, it has been honored with “Caring Company Award” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for eight consecutive years.

BABSF—BEFRABERATINES  BRESHETEIAC2EETRE 8 - —F
8 BEE N\ FEXER(EEL SRS )REN EHAREE IHIkRK

° By launching leveraged foreign exchange products, all currencies of G7 major economies are
available for investors to make use of the leveraging effect through trading foreign currencies
at any time.

HHERSINEER - RECGTEIELBER S EEKEREENBIERYE] - 2XIR24
IEREINEETEE
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Branch Network

DITHAE

HONG KONG &7

Hong Kong Headquarters
EBEMER

Central Branch
FIRDTT

Wanchai Branch
BT AT

North Point Branch
bl==Foxs)

Quarry Bay Branch
B EORDTT

KOWLOON .3

Kowloon Headquarters
S EE

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch

RPBATT

Hung Hom Branch

AWD1T

Mongkok Golden Hill Branch

HAEILNTT

Kwun Tong Branch

ByES1T

Kwun Tong 2nd Branch

BEE 1T

Kowloon City Branch
BEWATT

Sham Shui Po Branch

RIKE DT

Mei Foo Branch

EFENTT

Kowloon Bay Branch

EisNEA i
BEE DT

10/F & 23/F (Sales & Customer Services Department), Wing On House,
71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central

RREHEP TR KLEEBARE10B 2B R23ERE
(HEREFIRFSEL)

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road Central

FRIR 2 5 KB H 58-605% ik A E Mg

1/F, Henning House, 385-391 Hennessy Road

BT EFFIE385-30 1T EAE1IERE

Shop G2, G/F, Max Share Centre, 373 King’s Road

it A5 2383735 LB O G258

Shop 7, G/F and Mezzanine Floor, Tak Lee Building, 993 King’s Road
BIRURHE 2B HNIEM 7R LB R E

Mezzanine Floor and First Floor, Honour House, 375-381 Nathan Road
REZUB375-38 1 e BN ERE R 1ERE

1/F, Grand Right Centre, No.10 Cameron Road

SPESFHREIOFEEF O 1ERE

Shop 5C, G/F, 38-1 King Fu Building, Tak Man Street,

Phase 4 Whampoa Estate, Hung Hom

AR IO R 4 AR R A38- 15 R = 18 T oCHR A

1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street

HATEEH-4RRILFmEAEIE

Shops 4-6, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road

BB E @A E R O T 42657 5

Shop 5, G/F, Cambridge Building, 25-39 Hong Ning Road

EYER S E25-305 £ BEESF A T

Shop 4 on G/F & 1/F, The Prince Place, 398 Prince Edward Road West
BEWUA T8 Fa39855 1 o KFith T4ASRHR1ERE

G/F, 39 Yen Chow Street

FIKBE SN ET 395 i T

Shops 79-80 of Podium Floor, 51-53 Broadway Street,

Mei Foo Sun Chuen Phase 3

EF B EEAS1-535 K F I E 3T 5792805 4

Shop No. G203, G/F, Amoy Plaza, Amoy Gardens Phase Il

No. 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road

NBEIEA-ER AIE 775 A K152 833 T~ G20355% 4

BAESEMRERRAF | -t/ \FFH

(852) 2537 1371

(852) 3961 6688

(852) 3127 0888

(852) 3180 7428

(852) 3550 7888

(852) 3604 1888

(852) 3121 6888

(852) 3127 9288

(852) 3188 0928

(852) 3768 0888

(852) 3196 9688

(852) 3921 3388

(852) 3666 5688

(852) 3120 0388

(852) 3922 7788




Branch Network

DITHAE

NEW TERRITORIES ¥ &

Tsuen Wan Branch G/F & Cockloft, Sze Yuen Mansion, 253 Sha Tsui Road (852) 3929 2798
EED1T Y IRE2S3 BIREHM T R EE

Tai Wai Branch Shop 2B, G/F & Cockloft, On Tai Building, 11 Chik Fai Street (852) 3763 3488
REHTT RERBBE1 1R LT RE2BRMM ~ REE

Tai Po Branch G/F, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road (852) 3763 3388
KT KNI ERE141-14557 8810 T

Sheung Shui Branch Shop D, G/F & Cockloft, 80 Lung Sum Avenue (852) 3768 7188
KD 1T LOKBEERIZ 805 DA R BE

Yuen Long Branch Shop No. 5, G/F., Kan Yip Building, No. 225-237 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long (852) 3926 2688
TLEAD 1T TLEBAE LA ST RAER225-237 5k B S Hh T 55% 4

Tuen Mun Branch Shop 6, G/F, Tuen Mun Paris London-New York Cinema Shopping (852) 3193 1688
HBFID 1T Centre, 117-157 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

HPIEEE S 117157 R ERMBUERKI BB Y+ O3t 65k 4

BRIGHT SMART MOBILE TEACHING CENTRE 271 #2H& (852) 6282 6635
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Branch Network
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Awards
1218

Bright Smart Securities gains customers’ trust and support by adhering to the principles and beliefs of “Integrity, Sincerity,
Fairness and Conscience” and upholding the servicing principle of “Serving Customers with Heart”. With its active fulfillment
of corporate social responsibilities, promotion of charitable business and realization of its vision of “Parallel Development of
Commercial and Charitable Businesses” over the years, Bright Smart Securities has successfully earned high recognitions
from all sectors and maintained good reputation in the market as exemplified in the numerous awards that it has won.
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Financial Highlights

I EE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—HLEE

2018 2017 Increment
—E-N\F —E—tF E 0
$°000 $'000 %
Fr T
Revenue WA 944,440 562,517 67.9
Other income Hb Uz 164,414 105,898 55.3
Profit from operations IR T 767,572 372,588 106.0
Profit before taxation BB B A 600,592 314,589 90.9
Profit for the year FRRF 516,099 271,910 89.8
Total comprehensive income attributable R R E S R ia%E
to equity shareholders 518,340 258,541 100.5
Basis earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZFEWL) 30.41 16.02 89.8
Diluted earning per share (HK cents) GREERAN B 30.41 16.02 89.8
Final dividend per share (HK cents) R ARERR S CBIL)
(81 March 2018: 1,697,296,308 shares, (ZBE—)\F=A=+—H:
31 March 2017: 1,696,996,308 shares) 1,697,296,308/%
—2—+F=A=+—0":
1,696,996,308/% ) 9.10 4.80 89.6
Revenue Net Profit
WA R
HeShton 67.9% Ao 89.8%
1,200 600
516.1
1,100 550
944.4
1,000 500
900 450
800 400
700 350
562.5 271.9
600 300
500 250
400 200
300 150
200 100
100 50
0 0
2017 2018 2017 2018
—Z—tfF —Z-N\F —Z—tF —E-N\F

Year ended 31 March

BE=A=t—HILFE
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Year ended 31 March
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

In 2018, Hong Kong’s stock market opened with an impressive
start, and the Hang Seng Index soared to a record high, making
significant progresses once after another. The HKEX has already
allowed weighted voting rights and will facilitate the listing of
“Unicorn” enterprises and pre-revenue biotech companies as well
as the secondary listing of Greater China and overseas companies.
Benefited from the fourfold expansion of the existing daily quota
under the Stock Connect between China and Hong Kong with effect
from 1 May and the inclusion of A shares into MSCI, Hong Kong
will be able to maintain its strengths as the major financing centre in
China. The Group always seizes golden opportunities by investing
heavily every year to strengthen the online platform and improve the
trading system, with a view to securing a speedy, stable, safe and
reliable online transaction system, and hence it is well received and
trusted by its clients. In terms of marketing, riding on the IPO shares
subscription craze and the active market, the Group has increased
promotions and advertisements, leading to sharp increases in both
the number of new accounts and commission income. The significant
increases in the Group’s results performance and the number of
clients demonstrated notable successes of the Group. Upholding
the principle of “keeping up with time and striving for excellence”, the
Group will continue to adopt an aggressive approach in the coming
year in order to sustain its leading position in the industry as its top
priority.

BAESEMEEFRAF | -t/ \F5=

T \FRBREMGABABEA - BEER
i LRSS - R TEERER - BERSHM
RIEEIRRTRE] - BAERIEERE LD
BARBW N EY R R R RIEAA B E R
REREE - LT AER A — B ERT B
EAGHRERANGERARABRREERS - L
BEBERZCABRE  YEPRFEEERPEE
ZRETONED - ARE-RRKARESEES
e BFOeRMERES AR LT e MR
NRHES  WEBLIXZERRE  BE %
2 A% EMAREPEBULREE  EMIGHE
b TEnEEERSERE - SHP ABTRER
AR EE B SR AREE T M EREREE T - BN RS B W AR
BREEER - AREXEXRALEP ABDRGR
SRR - 456 B K - AEBAZEEREE -
fBaasKig JMiste - RESERARB AERIIM
RS - URGTTRBERMUAEERR -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

| am pleased to present to the shareholders the results of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Year”). The Group recorded a total revenue of HK$944.4
million (2017: HK$562.5 million), representing an increase of 67.9%
as compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Prior
Year”). Securities brokerage commission income increased by 48.2%
year-on-year to HK$536.0 million (2017: HK$361.6 million), and
margin financing interest income increased by 97.9% as compared to
the Prior Year to HK$360.1 million (2017: HK$182.0 million).

Profit for the Year was HK$516.1 million (2017: HK$271.9 million),
representing an increase of 89.8% as compared to the Prior Year.
Basic earnings per share was 30.41 HK cents (2017: 16.02 HK
cents), representing a year-on-year increase of 89.8%. The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) proposed a final dividend
of 9.10 HK cents per share for the Year (2017: 4.80 HK cents per
share). As at 31 March 2018, the total number of client accounts of
the Group reached 248,580, representing an increase of 17.8% over
the total number of client accounts of 211,072 as at 31 March 2017.
Client assets (including cash and stock) also increased to HK$54.7
billion (31 March 2017: HK$40.3 billion), representing a growth of
35.7%.

RAMARSMBRRIZERA BEHEREBEGRAQ
AARF ) MEMBAR (GBI AEZEEE
TE-N\FZAZ+-BUEFE(AFE]) 2%
B AEEATEREETZEMIAFERT(ZE
—tF 5E25BEET)  BHEZE—+tF=A
S+ —UFE( EEE]) EF67.9%  EFLELH
S AESBOEEBT(ZZE—+F : 361668
BIT)  RE LFH48.2% c FEEEFBE3G0.1H
BAET(CE—+F  18208EBT)  BLFE
FF97.9% -

NEERFAS161BEBL(ZE—tF : 2719
BEEBL)  REFE FF89.8%  MERELRE
FAEI0HBIN(ZE—+F : 16.0281(L) - AL
EF89.8% - ARREEG([EEg HERMLA
FERERPREFRIA0BIW(ZE—+F
M4.80781l) - REBR -_ZE—NF=A=+—H
ZEEFEOM#E2485801H  K_ZT—+F=
A=1+—HZBFFOBEH211,07218 - EigE
17.8% - RFBE(BERS MIRE) MG I1E547
BET(ZE—+EF=A=+—H : 403E& ) -
HE35.7% °
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

With the rapidly growing operation and ever-expanding business
scale, the Group adopted a cautious and prudent strategy involving
both offensive and defensive tactics in all market conditions. Last
year, in order to cope with the rapid growth of the number of clients,
the Group expanded its business by expanding and relocating the
original sales and service centre from the 27th floor of Wing On
House to the 23rd floor, the latter of which is a property held by me.
Currently, the Group has a total of 22 business locations including
all branches and head office. It has also set up the industry’s first
“Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre” in Hong Kong which travels
to major districts in Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and the New
Territories to provide customised services. More than 90% of its
branches operate seven days a week, striving to provide clients with
the most comprehensive, high quality and professional services. In
designing the branch layout, the Group never stops innovation and
transformation by adopting a “concept store” design idea in the
decoration of our branches in the recent years to create trendy and
young atmospheres. Following the relocation of Hunghom and Yuen
Long branches last year, renovation of branched will be continued
this year. In selecting new business locations, the Group takes into
consideration of three major factors such as low rents, prime location
and high foot traffic, and will further improve its branch network to
better serve its customers.

The Group keeps up with time and launched diversified products
to provide clients with comprehensive and professional brokerage
services. Its wide range of businesses includes Hong Kong shares,
U.S. shares, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares,
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, China B shares,
Japan shares, Taiwan shares, Singapore shares, Australia shares,
Hong Kong futures, Hang Seng Index Options, Hong Kong stock
options, Dow Jones Futures, A50 Futures, foreign exchange futures,
gold futures, oil futures, copper futures, IPO shares subscription, and
margin financing. This year, the Group newly launched U.K. shares,
RMB (HK) Gold Futures, US Dollar (HK) Gold Futures, leveraged
foreign exchange products and iron ore futures contract trading
services. Clients can purchase financial products from around the
world with one single account. With the most effective and stable
online trading platform, diversified order-placement channels and
ultra-low brokerage fee, together with the launch of mobile app “#2
F iRk FE”, the Group attracted both Chinese and Hong Kong
clients to open accounts and the total number of accounts increased
steadily.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Group’s comprehensive global network and diversified financial
products have been highly valued by investors and well recognized
and appreciated by the market. Following the recent inclusion as a
constituent stock of MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index by Morgan
Stanley Capital International, the Group was included into the two
major benchmark indices, namely “Hang Seng Global Composite
Index” and “Hang Seng Composite Index Series”, by Hang Seng
Index Co., Ltd., a benchmark index company in Hong Kong. This
year, the Group had the honour of being selected by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange as one of the shares in the “Closing Auction
Session”. In November last year, the Group was granted the
“Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award” by Economic Digest,
and “Listed Company Award of Excellence 2017” by Hong Kong
Economic Journal and PR ASIA. At the same time, the Group won
the award of “Software and Applications — Outstanding Securities
Trading Mobile APP” by Metro Broadcast and The Chamber of H.K.
Computer Industry last year for its fast order-placement speed, and
safe and stable mobile trading platform. Furthermore, by capitalising
on its online platform, the Group expanded rapidly and gained
wide recognition in mainland China. The Group was awarded the
QOutstanding Brokerage Company for the year at the “15th China’s
Financial Annual Champion Awards” by Hexun.com, a famous
financial website in China. All of these awards are testimony to the
Group’s significant position and strong competiveness in the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

As the Internet and mobile communication technologies became
popular, Internet finance grew rapidly and inevitably gave rise to the
online transaction security issues. Investors are increasingly aware
of risks and attach great importance to online transaction security.
The Group understands that online transaction security is the primary
concern of both buyers and sellers, and therefore it has always been
committed to maintaining a safe transaction environment. To increase
the security level of online transaction for protecting customers’
assets, all clients are required to enter the “second password”
when logging into the Group’s trading system. After completing the
transaction, clients will receive a short message from the Group.
This year, the Group further enhanced online transaction security
by implementing the “two-factor authentication” (2FA) measure to
give further protection to clients conducting transactions online.
While continuing to strengthen the capacity and speed of the trading
system, the Group will continue to invest in the enhancement of the
security level of online transactions as it regards providing a safe and
reliable trading platform as its top priority.

As for investor education, the Group often organises seminars
with exchanges and major financial institutions in various places to
introduce new investment products and the latest market dynamics
to the investors. Last year, the Group partnered with the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange to hold a total of five sessions of Futures e Shares
Convergence Summit ( EfefZ[EE = l& & ) ), which attracted nearly
5,000 clients and participants. The summit analyzed the latest trends
in the market and investment techniques, and received overwhelming
responses. The Group tried to break new ground by holding a large-
scale cross-industry investment seminar on “Stocks, Properties and
Shops Big Era” ( {A%e1&e#H KX ) ) and inviting representative and
renowned experts in the residential and commercial property sectors
together with the Group’s professional analyst team in the fourth
quarter of last year and the first quarter of this year, respectively,
which were well attended and applauded. At the same time, the
Group was the first in the industry to hold the first large-scale outdoor
investment seminar in Hong Kong at the World Trade Center in
Causeway Bay, attracting more than a thousand attendees and more
than 10,000 audiences watching live broadcasts online. Meanwhile,
the Group’s Bright Smart Finance Channel (4 814 &) also
organised the first global webcast investment seminar, and invited
heavyweight guests to analyze the market trend, deployed various
investment strategies in relation to financial products for customers
and provided professional and unique advices to help them solve the
investment difficulties. Bright Smart Finance Channel will launch more
diversified programs, including strategies for investing in the index
stocks, stock options and warrants and programs on the investment
of ETF products to cater to the market’s information needs for a
variety of financial products and provide investors with comprehensive
and in-depth financial information.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

On the corporate social responsibility front, the Group upholds the
principle of “giving back to where one takes from” and has always
been actively undertaking social responsibility and giving back to the
society while expanding its business. The Group spares no effort
to support public welfare undertaking and participate in various
charitable events, including the 18th Asian Junior Squash Team
Championships by way of donation to facilitate sports exchange
among youths from different countries. Over the years, the Group
has been supporting Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation, a charity
group, by providing practical and financial assistance, and has been
a sponsor for the “Joyful Charity Run” event for 7 consecutive years,
in order to promote emotional wellbeing. The Group has also been
named a “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for 8 consecutive years. In the meantime, the Group has
been actively supporting charitable events and education by making
donations to the “Rev. Bro. Paul Sun Education Foundation” and
“Louis Mak Charitable Foundation”, with a view to contributing to the
society.

OUTLOOK

In the year ahead, uncertainties prevail in the global economic
environment. The escalated interest rates and tax reform in U.S.,
trade war between U.S. and China and strikes by U.S., U.K. and
France against Syria will cause uncertainties to the prospects during
the second half of the year which is believed to cause adjustment
pressure on Hong Kong stock market. Nevertheless, a number of
good news came from Hong Kong'’s stock market in the first half
of the year, including the permission of HKEX for “weighted voting
rights” and the possible listing of numerous unicorn enterprises in
Hong Kong. In addition, the HKEX will continue to study and roll out
Primary Equity Connect, commaodity connectivity, extension of Bond
Connect to cover Southbound Trading, ETF Link, and London-Hong
Kong Connect. Coupled with the fourfold expansion of the daily quota
for stock connects between China and Hong Kong and the inclusion
of A shares into MSCI, Hong Kong’s stock market is expected to be
benefited from the aforesaid factors.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Group has full confidence in the long-term positive development
of China’s economy as well as the prospect of the economic
condition and financial industry of Hong Kong. The development of
mutual stock market access between the stock markets in Hong
Kong and Mainland China has never stopped. China continues to
promote the progress of marketization of the financial systems. As the
economic development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area
comprising nine cities in the Pearl River Delta together with Hong
Kong and Macau is in the pipeline, Hong Kong'’s leading position as
an international financial centre for providing professional consultancy,
legal and financial services will definitely be highlighted, and its
economic growth will be fully benefitted. In the meantime, the market
anticipates that the central government will launch more easing
measures for stable growth so as to motivate the growth of economic
data and make a turnaround of the negative market sentiment.

The Group adopts a unique operation model with sound business
conditions and competitiveness, and is well prepared for the
forthcoming challenges. The Group will maintain its cautiously
optimistic outlook as ever, looking for new breakthroughs on top of
the existing businesses in a stable, flexible and constantly innovative
manner, seeking and seizing opportunities in the midst of challenges,
actively expanding into new markets and exploring brand-new
financial products so as to further enhance its competitiveness and
consolidate its market share. The Group will constantly explore
various business possibilities to promote diversification of businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

The Group’s persistent achievement of outstanding results is
attributable to all dedicated and committed staff in providing quality
and sincere services to clients. | would like to thank the directors, the
management team and all staff for their efforts and contributions in
achieving the remarkable performance in the past year. The Group is
willing to share the results with the staff by distributing a record high
amount of bonus of approximately HK$40 million to all employees.
Staff with most outstanding performance even received a competitive
bonus payment of more than 15 months of salary. The Group wished
to leverage this opportunity to motivate our staff to continually strive
to contribute to the Group’s new height in the future.

At the beginning of the Year, | laid down a clear target for the earnings
of the Group and guided the team to achieve the goal. Leveraging
the close collaboration and endeavor of all staff, the Group’s results
saw a record high with net profit surpassing the target level. The
Group has already formulated comprehensive business development
strategies and laid down a clear target for the earnings for the next
year. It is hoped that all staff will develop their potential, surpass
themselves and go beyond their limits again so as to strive for a
better future. | will also lead Bright Smart to work its way through
obstacles, continue to fulfill its duties and try its best to provide
clients with the best services as an expression of gratitude for the
continuous trust and support from our clients. | will also gear up for
the future challenges and opportunities and strive for optimal returns
for investors.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 May 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD

MARKET REVIEW

For the Year under review, the Hong Kong stock market hit
successive new highs with a steady upward trend. After an eight-
month increase in the first eight months last year, at the beginning
this year, the Hang Seng surpassed its 2007 peak and hit the record
high. On 29 January this year, Hang Seng Index soared to a record
high and closed at 32,966 points. The average daily turnover in the
Year was HK$106.16 billion (2017: HK$67.41 billion), representing
an increase of 57.5% as compared to the Prior Year. In overall
terms, the Hang Seng Index opened at 24,237 points on 3 April
2017 and steadily rose by 24% to 30,093 points at the market close
on 29 March 2018. Following the two black swan events — Brexit
and Donald Trump’s election win — at the beginning of the financial
year, the global economy has already shaken off the gloom and is
expanding gradually and moderately this year. China’s economy also
performed steadily with a positive outlook as evidenced by the first
quarter’s GDP of RMB19,878.3 billion, representing a year-on-year
GDP growth of 6.8%, according to the National Bureau of Statistics
of China. In 2017, China’s GDP is the world’s second highest,
accounting for 156% of the global economy and exerting significant
contribution and influence.

The global economy stepped into a high-speed growth period at
the beginning of this year. Not only did the U.S. economic growth
speed up, but also the economy of China, Japan as well as the
whole Eurozone continued to maintain an accelerated growth
momentum. Since the Lehman Brothers incident, U.S. stocks
have seen their longest bull market for the second time in history,
while the Dow Jones Index rose to record levels and has exceeded
26,000. Benefitting from the vibrant global economy, Hong Kong also
achieved a satisfactory economic growth. Furthermore, in view of
the implementation of reserve ratio reduction by the People’s Bank
of China, more and more capital from Mainland China flowed into
Hong Kong, and will provide sufficient capital and create a favorable
environment for the stock and property markets. The upward trend in
the assets market also continued to support personal consumption
and the overall economic performance.

Benefitted from the favourable factors such as the proposed listing
of companies with weighted voting right structure and “unicorn”
enterprises in 2018, HKEX’s proposed introduction of the Primary
Equity Connect, commodity connectivity, extension of Bond Connect
to cover Southbound Trading, ETF Link, and London-Hong Kong
Connect, the fourfold expansion of the daily quota for stock connects
between China and Hong Kong and the announcement made in
June in relation to the inclusion of A shares into the MSCI Emerging
Markets Index, the stock market is expected to bloom. Stepping into
the second half of 2018, it is expected that market condition will be
constrained by the higher interest rate and tax reform in the U.S,,
coupled with the possibility of a trade war between China and the U.S.
and the uncertainties to the global economic prospects that may be
brought by the joint military strikes by the U.S., U.K. and France on
Syria. Despite this, the long-term prospect remains positive.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONAL RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$944.4 million
(2017: HK$562.5 million), representing an increase of 67.9% as
compared to the Prior Year. Profit for the Year was HK$516.1 million
(2017: HK$271.9 million), representing an increase of 89.8% as
compared to the Prior Year. Total comprehensive income attributable
to equity shareholders was HK$518.3 million (2017: HK$258.5
million), representing an increase of 100.5% as compared to the Prior
Year. Basic earnings per share were 30.41 HK cents (2017: 16.02
HK cents) and the diluted earnings per share were 30.41 HK cents
(2017: 16.02 HK cents). The board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) proposed a final dividend of 9.10 HK cents per share for the
Year (2017: 4.80 HK cents).

Benefitting from the substantial growth in the total turnover of the
Hong Kong stock market, the Group’s revenue for the past year
increased significantly. According to the statistics provided by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the average daily turnover
of the Stock Exchange for the Year was approximately HK$106.16
billion, representing a significant increase of approximately 57.5% as
compared with approximately HK$67.41 billion for the Prior Year. In
addition, in order to support the Group’s proactive expansion and
development strategy, the Group undertook expansion exercises by
recruiting talents and expanding its network to cover 22 branches
and headquarters across Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and the New
Territories during the Year. Furthermore, the Group also upgraded the
network security infrastructure to further strengthen the protection of
its clients’ interests and be well-prepared for another robust growth in
turnover in the near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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TOTAL NUMBER OF CLIENT ACCOUNTS AND
ASSETS

The global economy has stepped into a rapid growth phase. The
desires of consumption and investment amongst the general public
have both gradually intensified, leading to continuous improvement
of the market conditions. With a forward-looking vision, the Group
has maintained its strategy of active expansion regardless of bull
or bear markets. By the end of March 2018, the Group had a total
of 22 business locations including the headquarters in Central and
all branches, covering the core districts in Hong Kong. Most of its
branches open seven days a week, which is a breakthrough in the
industry. Moreover, by adhering to the customer-oriented principle
as always, the Group has been a first mover in the securities industry
by launching “Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre” traveling around
in the Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and New Territories. The mobile
teaching centre improved customer service quality and offered
convenience to all customers. The Group’s proactive expansion led
to a steady growth of its total number of client accounts successfully.
During the Year, the number of new client accounts (after deducting
the number of client accounts closed) reached 37,508. As a
result, the total number of client accounts increased to 248,580,
representing an increase of 17.8% as compared to 211,072 as at
31 March 2017. As at 31 March 2018, client assets (including cash,
stocks and margin deposits) increased to approximately HK$54.7
billion (31 March 2017: approximately HK$40.3 billion), representing
an increase of 35.7%.
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REVENUE A

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$944.4 million  ANFE - AEERASESI44BEBT(ZE—+
(2017: HK$562.5 million), representing an increase of 67.9% as 4 : 562.5BEBT) - B EEE L IN67.9% o &
compared to the Prior Year. A summary of revenue from different E&ZEEn 32 WHEEHW0T -

business segments of the Group is set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

Proportion Proportion

of total of total
revenue revenue  Increment

L ON (FCEON
pdsd!] pdsdl]! 2
HK$'000 %  HK$000 % %

TAET TET
Income from: RENTEE WA

- Securities brokerage —BHLEL 349,429 37.0% 203,288 36.1% 71.9%
- Hong Kong futures and options brokerage  — &8 H & Kk HifEL 40 101,913 10.8% 89,143 15.8% 14.3%
— Global futures brokerage —IRHEIEEL 56,275 6.0% 55,997 10.0% 0.5%
~ Bullion trading -BEERS 19,086 2.0% 14,071 25% 35.6%
— Stock option brokerage — R EHREEL 15,013 1.6% 7,207 1.3% 108.3%
- IPO brokerage -“BRRRBEELL 13,386 1.4% 5,958 11%  124.7%
Interest income from IPO financing BHRARBEFBRA 29,280 3.1% 4,879 0.9% 500.1%
Interest income from margin financing FREBEFSIA 360,058 38.1% 181974 32.3% 97.9%

944,440 100.0% 562,517 100.0% 67.9%

Revenue from Main Businesses

ETEEBEA
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360,05
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350,000
300,000

250,000
203,288

200000 181,97
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101,913

89,143
100,000
55,907 ) (56,275
50,000
0 —

Securities Hong Kong futures Global futures Interest income from
brokerage and options brokerage brokerage margin financing
BHEe FRE RS BRESR HREAFSBA

2017 2018
T -e'te W _glhs

YYear ended 31 March
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Securities brokerage

During the Year, the HKEX recorded a total transaction amount
of HK$26,010.3 billion (2017: HK$16,717.1 billion), representing
a year-on-year increase of 55.6%. The substantial increase in the
transaction amount directly contributed to the Group’s revenue.
The Group’s commission income from securities brokerage
amounted to HK$349.4 million (2017: HK$203.3 million),
accounting for 37.0% (2017: 36.1%) of the total revenue,
representing a dramatic increase of 71.9% as compared to the
Prior Year, outpacing the increase in market trading volume.

Commission Income from Securities
Brokerage of the Group
AEEERFLLASWA

HK$Million
HEBT

i
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2017 2018
—Z2—+F —E2-N\F
Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1—HILFE

/| —N\FEEH

L RHEL
BRANAFEZ BRR©EHS260,103

BAT  REEIEMS56%( =T —+4F
167171188 L) - BRARSHEHRBER

EEHAEENRE  AEEESLELAHAEK
A8:15349.4 B EHF T (=T —+F : 203.38
B (hEEEREIT0N(ZE—1F
36.1%) ' M EFEKRIE EFA71.9% - RIRE
AR FHIR o

Transaction Amount of the
Hong Kong Stock Market
EBRETERREHE
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II. Hong Kong futures and options brokerage II. EEHERAERKE

As an active futures and options market has been formed due HRIEETISRAAE S EREESD
to the upbeat investment sentiment, 124.2 million (2017: 110.5 BRI NBEH  SE8HEXSEEATZ
million) derivative contracts of Hong Kong Futures Exchange MEEREFAORRREAI1242BE R
Limited were entered in the Year, representing an increase of ZE—EF 1105EHEBR) 0 EA12.4% ©
12.4%. The Group’s Hong Kong futures and options brokerage AREBAFEHRSESHENESLHS
segment recorded commission income of HK$101.9 million WAZEI01 9B BB IL(ZE—LF : 8018
(2017: HK$89.1 million), representing an increase of 14.3% B8 BLEFE EF14.3% @ (FREERE
as compared to the Prior Year, accounting for 10.8% (2017: 10.8%(=F—+tF : 15.8%) °

15.8%) of the total revenue.

Commission Income from Hong Kong Transaction Volume of Derivative
Futures and Options Brokerage of the Group Contracts at the HKFE
REFSEEEHRERPELLCZATWA FTEEGHRBRFIZREE
HK$Million ) No. of contracts >
BEET m (Million) m
ANYE (E8)
105 130
101.9
124.2
125
100
120
95
115
' 1105
920
110
85
105
80 100
2017 2018 2017 2018
—EB—tF —E-N\F —E—tF —E-N\F
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March
HE=ZA=1T—HIFE HE=ZA=+—HILFE
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III. Global futures brokerage

Iv.

VL.

Hong Kong’s investment market continued to be active and
diversified, driving investors’ investment sentiment on the global
market. During the Year, the commission income from global
futures brokerage was HK$56.3 million (2017: HK$56.0 million),
representing a slight increase of 0.5% as compared to the Prior
Year, accounting for 6.0% (2017: 10.0%) of the total revenue.

Bullion trading

The joint military strikes by the U.S., U.K. and France on
Syria and the intense relationship between U.S. and North
Korea triggered capital inflow to the global gold market due to
heightened risk aversion. During the Year, the Group’s bullion
trading income was HK$19.1 million (2017: HK$14.1 million),
representing an increase of 35.6% as compared to the Prior
Year, accounting for 2.0% (2017: 2.5%) of the total revenue.

Stock options brokerage

The Group recorded a stock options brokerage commission
income of HK$15.0 million (2017: HK$7.2 million) during the
Year, representing an increase of 108.3% as compared to
the Prior Year, accounting for 1.6% (2017: 1.3%) of the total
revenue. Stock option is a relatively high leveraged investment
product. The Group monitored the margin levels maintained in
the stock option accounts closely and adjusted them according
to market conditions to ensure proper risk control.

IPO brokerage and IPO financing

Driven by the IPO shares subscription craze, during the Year, the
Group’s commission income from IPO brokerage was HK$13.4
million (2017: HK$6.0 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 124.7%; and the interest income from IPO financing
increased by 500.1% to HK$29.3 million (2017: HK$4.9 million)
accordingly.

VII. Margin financing

With the active trading sentiment in the overall market, investors
became active in entering the market. The average daily margin
financing increased by 109.4% to HK$9.40 billion (2017:
HK$4.49 billion) during the Year. During the Year, the Group’s
interest income from margin financing was HK$360.1 million
(2017: HK$182.0 million), representing an increase of 97.9%
from the Prior Year, accounting for 38.1% (2017: 32.3%) of the
total revenue. The Group implemented effective credit control
procedures and did not have any bad debt during the past
years.

RABSEREMABAF | =T L/ —/\FFH

III. JREIRPERL

Iv.

VI
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GAIN FROM INVESTMENT

For the purpose of enhancing the Group’s financial performance, the
Group has held Hong Kong listed securities and futures contracts as
an investment. The carrying amount of investments in listed securities
and future contracts was HK$61.4 million as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$7.0 million), which was classified as available-for-sale securities
and held for trading investments in the consolidated statement of
financial position. During the Year, the realised gain from disposal
of available-for-sale securities and trading of futures contracts were
HK$13.7 million (2017: HK$34.9 million), and the equity investment
revaluation reserve increased by HK$2.6 million to HK$4.0 million
(2017: HK$1.4 million) as compared with 31 March 2017.

OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT
MARGIN

The revenue and transaction expense of the Group increased due
to the steady improvement of market conditions. The total operating
expenses for the Year was HK$554.5 million (2017: HK$375.8
million), representing an increase of 47.6% as compared to the
Prior Year. However, thanks to its comprehensive management
and effective cost control measures, the net profit margin increased
significantly to 54.6% (2017: 48.3%).

Net Profit Margin

%
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48.3 )
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A breakdown of operating expenses is set out below:

LRSI

Increment/
2018 2017 (decrement)
20\ ZT+F ENORD)
HK$’000 HK$’000 %

Frx T
Staff costs B TR 138,937 109,688 26.7%
Amortisation and depreciation I ITE 18,768 11,100 69.1%
Finance costs BA TSR AR 166,980 57,999 187.9%
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREERAT 8,739 7,643 14.3%
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN & 1,619 1,591 1.8%

Commission, handling and KRRe  FEEBR

settlement expenses HHEER 77,662 54,792 41.7%
Information and communication expenses B B 32,619 31,426 3.8%
Rental, rates and building management fees e ZMREFEERE 65,038 63,968 1.7%
Legal and professional fees FERBEEER 3,486 6,021 (42.1%)
Miscellaneous expenses HMIERY 40,661 31,5637 28.9%
554,509 375,765 47.6%

FUTURE PLANS

The global economy has entered a period of accelerated growth.
Performance of the global financial market improved steadily with
an upward trend, and the attitude of investors towards entering the
market turned active, making the transactions and investments in
stock market more vibrant. Leveraging on the first-mover advantages,
the Group adopted an active expansion and development strategy by
setting up 22 business locations including headquarters and branches
as well as recruiting talents continuously, so as to expand its branch
network and improve its service quality. In the future, the Group will
continue to identify sites located at prime locations for new branches,
and will regularly hold job fairs to attract talents to meet its needs for
business expansion, thereby not only recruiting talents but also taking
up the responsibility of nurturing the next generation for the industry.
During the second and third quarters last year, the Group held a
total of five sessions of “Futures e Shares Convergence Summit”
(CHR o % [E 2 5 1& € )) at the Exchange Auditorium of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the first time, which attracted nearly 5,000
participants and received overwhelming response. In the future, the
Group will work with stock exchanges around the world in organising
more investment seminars, so as to deepen clients’ understanding
towards global financial products and diversify their investment
directions. The Group is always keen on sharing happiness with its
clients. It organised the “Summer Movie Ticket Giveaway by Bright
Smart” and “Chinese New Year Movie Ticket Giveaway by Bright
Smart” events at the end of September last year and in the first
quarter this year, respectively, invited more than 15,000 clients to
watch international blockbusters and received wide acclaim. The
Group will continue to adopt a diversified strategy and grasp all the
business opportunities arising in the Big Era of Hong Kong stock
market in the future.

BAERSEMKRETRAT | — Tt/ —/\FFR
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Develop more global financial products to meet market
demand

The Group has always been a pioneer. In view of investors’
rising interest in global financial products and increasingly active
participation in the investment of global financial products, the
Group’s online trading platforms and mobile applications for securities
and futures trading have been made available to connect to the
global market, providing comprehensive and professional brokerage
services. The Group’s scope of business covers Hong Kong shares,
U.S. shares, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect A-Shares,
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect A Shares, China B Shares,
Japan shares, Taiwan shares, Singapore shares, Australia shares,
Hong Kong futures, Hang Seng Index options, Hong Kong stock
options, Dow Jones Futures, A50 Futures, foreign exchange futures,
gold futures, oil futures, copper futures, IPO shares subscription and
margin financing. During the Year, the Group introduced U.K. shares,
RMB (HK) Gold Futures, US Dollar (HK) Gold Futures, leveraged
foreign exchange products and iron ore futures contract trading
services to cater to the needs of different clients. The Group believes
that interest of investors in investing in global financial products is
growing. Therefore, the Group will continue to develop more global
financial products to meet market demand.

Simplified account opening process to promote customer
convenience

The Group has been keeping pace with time by investing resources
in the development of [ # 4 & i® F & & | mobile APP for online
registration of securities, futures, stock option, precious metals and
leveraged foreign exchange accounts, which simplified the account
opening process and reduced the costs paid by clients. Clients from
both Hong Kong and the mainland China may open accounts anytime
without leaving home.

ARREMERLE TS
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Committed to enhancing the security of online transactions

Meanwhile, in order to offer a more convenient and stable online
trading platform, the Group has increased capital expenditure to
improve the trading system, relocated its central computer system
to the data centre of the Stock Exchange located in Tseung Kwan
O, conducted size tests for all transaction systems, including regular
simulated tests involving a trading volume exceeding five times
of the existing trading volume on the Stock Exchange as well as
continuously optimized the existing securities and futures trading
platform. Furthermore, for network security, in order to secure online
trading, the Group has already implemented the “dual password”
security measure and authentication by which each client must
enter two sets of passwords before logging in the trading system to
conduct transaction. This year, the Group also introduced the “two-
factor authentication” (2FA) function to give further protection to
clients conducting transactions online. While continuing to strengthen
the capacity and speed of the trading system, the Group will
emphasize more on educating clients on the importance of adopting
safe online trading to improve clients’ awareness of and skills on risk
prevention.

The Group invested substantial resources to upgrade the efficiency
and capacity of its online trading system for dealing with transactions,
with a view to meeting clients’ needs and improving service quality.
The Group was granted the “Outstanding Securities Trading Mobile
App” award by The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry and
Metro Broadcast. This award was won through voting by business
celebrities and by the public on a “one person, one vote” basis,
which was widely recognized. This has manifestly demonstrated the
popularity of the Group’s online trading system with rapidity, stability,
security. The Group will pay close attention to the latest developments
of the market and study the need and room for capacity expansion.

BAESEMRERRAF | -t/ \FFH
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Devote resources to enhance competitiveness

Adhering to the customer-oriented service philosophy, the
proactive and aggressive business development strategy and its
outstanding performance, the Group has earned high affirmations
and recognitions from the market. Following the inclusion to the
“MSCI Index” in May 2015, the Group was also included into “Hang
Seng Global Composite Index” and “Hang Seng Composite Index
Series”, being the two major benchmark indexes, by Hang Seng
Indexes Company Limited, the leading index company in Hong Kong,
in March 2016. In July last year, the Group had the honour of being
selected by the HKEX as one of the shares in the “Closing Auction
Session”. The Group will remain committed to providing quality
services to clients, developing more global financial products and
exploring diversified business. Moreover, the Group will allocate more
resources to enhance marketing strategy, in order to further improve
its competitive edge and solidify its strengths, so as to continue
maintaining its leading position in the industry.

Summary

During the Year, in the spirit of “being proactive and striving for
excellence”, the Group constantly enhanced its corporate brand
image and competitiveness and captured opportunities to explore
the Mainland China market, with a view to serving more investors
and driving the Group to achieve improvements and remarkable
results since its listing in 2010. The Group’s accomplishments are
attributable to the continuous support and trust of its clients, who
have been standing by us as they have always done. In the future, the
Group will provide more high quality customer services and develop
a highly secured and convenient trading platform so as to reward
the long-term support from our clients, striving to provide them with
high satisfaction. At the same time, the Group will strengthen its
existing competitive advantages, identify business opportunities and
develop more diversified business, in order to increase the Group’s
operational efficiency and bring better returns to our shareholders.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s operations were financed by shareholders’ equity, cash
generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity with total bank deposits, bank
balances and cash amounting to HK$511.9 million as at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$596.9 million). The Group had bank borrowings of
HK$8,165.9 million as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$5,096.0 million)
which bore interest primarily at floating rate. The bank borrowings
were primarily collateralised by its margin clients’ securities pledged
to the Group. As at 31 March 2018, unutilised banking facilities
amounted to HK$10,020.1 million (2017: HK$10,041.2 million). The
Group’s gearing ratio (total bank borrowings divided by the total
shareholders’ equity) was 309.7% (2017: 231.7%). As at 31 March
2018, the net current assets of the Group increased by 16.6% to
HK$2,423.4 million (2017: HK$2,079.1 million). As at 31 March 2018,
the Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities)
was 1.2 times (2017: 1.3 times).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures that each
of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level adequate to support the
level of activities with a sufficient buffer to accommodate increases
in liquidity requirements arising from potential increases in the level
of business activities. During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries
complied with the liquidity requirements under the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March
2018 and 2017.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees provided
by the Company in respect of banking facilities granted by authorised
institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities and futures
broking amounted to HK$14,960.0 million (2017: HK$12,060.0
million). As at 31 March 2018, the subsidiaries of the Company have
utilised HK$6,434.9 million of these aggregate banking facilities (2017:
HK$4,021.0 million).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did not consider
that any claim would be made against the Group under any of the
guarantees.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2018 were
approximately HK$70.7 million (2017: HK$113.6 million). The capital
commitments as at 31 March 2018 were approximately HK$4.5
million (2017: HK$5.1 million).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a work force of 298 employees
(2017: 306 employees). Staff costs, excluding Directors’ emoluments,
amounted to approximately HK$125.1 million for the Year (2017:
HK$97.2 million). The Group’s remuneration policy aims to offer
competitive remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate
competent employees. The Group believes that the remuneration
packages are reasonable and competitive and in line with market
trends. The Group has put in place a share option scheme and a
bonus scheme for its executives and employees as a measure to
provide a competitive remuneration package for the Group’s long-
term growth and development. The Group also provides appropriate
training and development programs to its employees to enhance the
staff’s work ability and personal effectiveness.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this announcement, the
Group has not been involved in any litigation of significance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from
clients, brokers and clearing houses. The management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all clients (including cash and margin clients).
Cash clients are required to place deposits as prescribed in the
Group’s credit policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
Receivables due from cash clients are due within the settlement
period commonly adopted in the relevant market practices, which
is usually within a few days from the trade date. Because accounts
receivable from cash clients relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default, there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable, and the prescribed deposit requirements and
the short settlement period involved, the credit risk arising from
the amounts due from cash clients is considered low. The Group
normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits as collateral
for providing financing to its cash and margin clients. Margin loans
due from margin clients are repayable on demand. For commodities
and futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to opening
transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of securities collateral
and margin deposits of each cash account, margin account and
futures account are monitored by the management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where necessary.

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing houses,
credit risks are considered low as the Group normally enters into
transactions with brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as credits
are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients and cash clients with
outstanding loan amounts on the basis of its cost of funding plus a
mark-up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and deposits with
banks) and financial liabilities (such as bank loans) are primarily at
floating rates. The Group’s income and operating cash flows are not
subject to significant interest rate risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from financial
instruments that are denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”), Japanese Yen (“‘JPY”),
Australian dollars (“AUD”) and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the
risk of movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
as insignificant. In respect of financial instruments denominated in
other currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept
at an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances. The
management monitors all the foreign currency positions on a daily
basis.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
listed investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio
have been chosen based on their long-term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Chairman & Executive Director

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 66, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director
and the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yip is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Company. He
is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing
operations and the overall steering of the Group’s management.
Mr. Yip has solid experience in brokerage industry and investment
and has over 20 years’ management experience in securities and
futures brokerage. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognized by the Securities &
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) for engaging in the Type 2
(dealing in futures contracts) regulated activity. He is the sole director
of New Charming Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company and the uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the
Executive Directors of the Company.
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director and Co-Chief Executive Officer on 5 October
2015 and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on 31 May 2016)

Aged 44, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. He is responsible for overall business development,
operations and management of the Group. He is also a member
of the Risk Management Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 20 years of experience in
securities and futures businesses, and has worked in a number
of securities firms. Mr. Hui has expertise in brokerage operations,
sales management and market operations of securities and futures
businesses, particularly with over 10 years of experience in frontline
branch management. Mr. Hui is also a responsible officer recognized
by the Securities and Futures Commission for engaging in the Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type
4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts),
Type 7 (providing automated trading services) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities.

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director & Dealing Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 53, is an Executive Director of the Company and the Dealing
Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing operations of
securities and futures businesses. Mr. Chan is also a director of
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited and Bright Smart
Futures & Commodities Company Limited. He has over 18 years’
experience in securities and futures businesses and is a responsible
officer recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts), Type 7 (providing
automated trading services) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities. Mr. Chan is the nephew of Mr. Yip, the founder,
the Chairman of the Board and the controlling shareholder of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YU Yun Kong

Independent Non-executive Director

(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 52, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Risk
Management Committee as well as a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a practising certified public
accountant with over 20 years’ experience in public accounting
practice. He is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also an associate member of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong.

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws (Hons) and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong
Kong, and obtained the Professional Certificate in Chinese Civil &
Commercial Law, a course jointly organised by Tsinghua University
in the PRC and the School of Professional and Continuing Education
of The University of Hong Kong in 2002. He also holds a Professional
Diploma for the Financial Times Non-Executive Director issued in
May 2015, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1985 and
worked in a number of law firms in Hong Kong including Edmund
Cheung & Co. and Y.T. Chan & Co., before founding his own firm
Sun Lawyers (formerly known as W.S. Szeto & Lee, Solicitors) in
20083. He remains the Senior Partner of Sun Lawyers. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 6161), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Mr. Ling has over 20 years’ experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has been a director and the company secretary of
a charitable organisation since 2004. Mr. Ling joined Midland Realty
(Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was the executive director when he
left the company in 1997. Prior to that, he was a controller of Hong
Kong Telephone Company Limited and has also worked at Chase
Manhattan Bank and the First National Bank of Boston in accounting
field. Mr. Ling is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

(Biographical details are set out on page 39)

Mr. HUI Yik Bun

(Biographical details are set out on page 40)

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson

(Biographical details are set out on page 40)

Ms. LI Wan Mei

Chief Financial Officer

(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 34, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the overall financial
and accounting management of the Group. Ms. Li has over 10 years’
accounting experience, including three years’ experience gained in
PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business

Administration from the Lingnan University and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. LAM Hung Yi
Assistant General Manager
(Joined the Group in August 2007)

Aged 43, is the Assistant General Manager in charge of the Group’s
business operation on securities, futures and spot gold, as well as the
supervisor of the daily operation of all front line sales representatives.
Mr. Lam has over 20 years of experience in financial sector, including
10 years’ experience in sales and operation management. Mr. Lam
is a representative recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
regulated activities.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak

(February 2011 — May 2012; re-appointed in October 2012)

Aged 61, is a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in company
secretarial practices in respect of listed companies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - S RERWME

SCOPE AND PERIOD OF REPORTING

A major trend for corporate development, sustainability has become
a key topic that draws the attention of stakeholders. Policies set
out in this report have been prepared with the participation of and
upon the consideration by major stakeholders including substantial
shareholders, directors, the management and employees to address
future challenges.

To achieve sustainability, the Group strives to promote environmental
protection, instilling corporate social responsibilities to its business
and management strategies and maintaining a culture of sound
governance. This report covers a reporting period from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018. Disclosure are made primarily under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing of the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board
Listing Rules), to inform stakeholders of the Group’s performance in
environmental, social and governance terms.

ENVIRONMENTAL,
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

SOCIAL AND

The Group’s environmental, social and governance policies are based
on five basic principles set out below:

e  To enhance corporate value and focus on shareholders’ return;
e  To foster financial transparency and boost investors’ confidence;
o To cater to customers’ needs and protect customers’ interests;
e To develop employees and safeguard employees’ interests; and

e To support environmental protection and seek to give back to
the community.

A. Environmental
Policies on environment and energy

Environmental protection and energy conservation form an
important part of our corporate social responsibilities. Apart
from full compliance with laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection, the Group also seeks to prevent
pollution, conserve energy and reduce emission, with a view
to achieving sustainability in the course of its day-to-day
operations.
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Use of resources ERFEM

Operating in the financial services sector, the Group upholds AREEBNEKSHE ARG - W+9 R
energy conservation and advocates the best use of resources. AR LREEER - HFAEHENEINR
Disclosures on emissions and use of resources primarily relate MERERTEAANREENSDITAER
to the use of electricity, water and paper in its head office and MEH ~ AKRER AR ARERWER S
branch offices, as well as the greenhouse gas emissions in the SHPTESAEEREEHET -

course of petrol consumption by vehicles of the Company.

Environment and natural resources BRIEN ARER
1. Greenhouse gases 1. BERE
Volume of
emissions Emissions as a
Scope of greenhouse (in tonnes percentage of
gas emissions Sources of emissions of CO2e¢) total emission
B2
(Am = F{b Bz
HERUR E&25) BEME (L)
Scope 1
Direct emissions Consumption of petrol by the 64.8 4.2%
Group’s fleet of vehicles
&=
BEHEW AN B EFKH) VR ERE
Scope 2
Indirect emissions Purchase and use of electricity 1,401.5 90.0%
EiE2
I HERL ERET
Scope 3
Other indirect emissions Consumption of paper 90.3 5.8%
=3
E b PR HEREFE
Total
#ct 1,556.6 100.0%
A total of 1,556.6 tonnes of CO2e, which mainly comprises NREEBEBREENILIEZEREHEHRZE A
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide, were emitted 1,556.6ME —EtMEE(FE A -2
from the Group’s operations as greenhouse gas emissions. %~ Bk~ Sk R) o
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Electricity

During the reporting period, the Group consumed
2,013,681 kilowatt-hours of electricity. Measures were
taken for energy conservation, including the purchase of
energy-saving office equipment and appliances, such as the
use of LED lights and energy-saving light bulbs; setting the
default mode of printers and computers at energy-saving;
encouraging switching off computers, air-conditioners and
illumination systems during non-office hours or periods of
extended away; and ongoing improvements to equipment
including illumination and air-conditioning systems to uplift
the overall energy efficiency.

Water

During the reporting period, the Group consumed
approximately 1,989 cubic metres of water. As part of
the water usage fee was included in the management fee
paid to landlord, full data on water consumption are not
available. The Group also encourages saving on water use
among employees.

Petrol

During the reporting period, the Group consumed 26,638
litres of petrol in its vehicles, representing emission of 64.8
tonnes of COz¢ in aggregate. In purchasing its vehicles, the
Group takes environmental protection and energy efficiency
into due consideration.

Hazardous wastes and packaging materials

No hazardous wastes or packaging materials are produced
from the business operations of the Group. In selecting
suppliers or cooperation partners, the Group takes into
consideration, among others, their environmental and
energy policies, to maximize environmental protection and
minimize pollution.
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Non-hazardous wastes

Non-hazardous wastes produced from the operations
of the Group primarily comprise paper used in offices,
which amounted to a total of approximately 18.8 tonnes
of paper and in turn 90.3 tonnes of CO2e emission during
the reporting period. To minimize paper consumption, a
number of measures are in place, including measures to
encourage setting double-sided printing as the default
mode and reuse of paper and so forth.

In recent years, the Group has sought for a paperless
working environment by adopting electronic means for
internal dissemination of information, such as payroll
notices, circulars, memoranda and so forth. This has saved
the use of space, facilitated the sharing of information on
our intranet, and cut down on the use of paper, and in turn
augmented efficiency in our day-to-day operations.

Further, digitized services including electronic statements,
account opening through mobile apps and account opening
through the internet have been made available. We also use
electronic mails and messaging tools in disseminating latest
promotional materials to our customers.

We also recommend shareholders to access information
including HKEx announcements and shareholders’
correspondences via the internet. The policies for a
paperless workplace contribute to environmental protection
as well as saving on operating expenses.

Measures for green offices

To produce less wastes and recycle resources, suppliers
are regularly arranged to collect used printing cartridges
and toners for recycling purpose, while recycling bins are
placed at its head and branch offices for collecting used

paper.
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B. Social

Employment and labour practices

1.

48

Employment

As of 31 March 2018, the Group had a total headcount of
298 employees, all of whom were full-time employees.

The Group cares about the health and well-being of its
employees. All employees are entitled to life insurance,
discretionary bonus, medical benefits, paid annual leaves,
paid sick leaves, educational subsidies, examination
subsidies and so forth. Details are set out in a staff
handbook to ensure that employees fully understand their
rights and duties.

Health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for its
employees in compliance with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance in Hong Kong.

We care about the physical and mental health of each and
every one of our employees, with frequent production of
posters to remind its employees of occupational safety and
health.

Data on occupational safety and health

BRz2REERE

Work-related mortality

TIERBEMSET

Work-related injuries (over three days)
THEZE(ZN3A)

Work-related injuries (within three days)
THEEZE(DR3A)

Loss of working days due to work-related injuries
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Development and training

The Group acknowledges that employees are the most
important assets of the Company. To maintain its leading
position in the vibrant and versatile financial market, the
Group encourages and subsidizes employees at different
job grades to enroll and/or participate in development or
training courses in support of their career and professional
development.

Trainings in preparation for sitting qualification examinations
for securities and futures practitioners are offered to
new hires at the Group. Meanwhile, various professional
trainings are organized for directors, the management and
some related employees, including trainings recognized
respectively by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries, continuing professional
training (CPT), continuing professional development (CPD),
customer services trainings and so forth.

Labour standards

Recruitment are conducted by the human resources
department of the Group according to the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Personal data collected in the
course of recruitment are only used for selecting suitable
candidates. Further, employees’ background information
are verified in detail to ensure that no illegal workers,
compulsory labour or child labour are hired.

Operating practices

1.

Supply chain management

The Group attaches great importance to the mutually
beneficial and long-term relationship with its suppliers.
In its procurement policies, the Group adheres to the
principle of “cost effectiveness”, under which high-quality
customer services are ensured while costs are minimized.
Different departments stay in good communication with its
suppliers, conduct review and checking processes from
time and time. In making decisions for procurement, factors
including historical price quotations, product offering,
service offering, performance and environmental and
social policies by suppliers are all taken into consideration,
so that suppliers adhering to similar notions and offering
reasonable prices are selected.
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Product responsibility

Internal control and compliance procedures are in place to
ensure compliance with all relevant laws and regulations
by the Group’s frontline staff members. The Group also
provides relevant trainings to its employees, thereby
ensuring that employees apprehend the nature and risks
underlying financial services and that they are equipped
with professional knowledge sufficient for them to provide
the most suitable advice to their customers under all
circumstances.

Customer opinions/complaints

With clear black-and-white procedures within the Group, all
disputes and complaints are investigated and resolved in an
impartial and rapid manner. General complaints are dealt
with by the customer services department, which replies
accordingly to the respective customers. Compliance-
related complaints are dealt with independently by the
compliance department, which replies accordingly to the
respective customers and/or relevant law enforcement
bodies.

Laws and regulations

The Group has obtained all licences, qualifications
and permits required of its business operations. The
compliance department is responsible for ensuring that
business operations comply with laws and regulations.
Updates on relevant laws and regulations are notified to
relevant operating units and employees from time to time.
During the Year, there had been no violation of any laws
or regulations on the part of the Group that would have or
would likely have material adverse effect on the Group.

Privacy of personal data

For the protection of privacy in respect of personal data,
the Group has developed its policies for the protection of
personal data on the basis of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. With due regards to personal data privacy,
the Group is committed to fully enforcing and observing
the principles of data protection as well as all relevant
provisions in the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The
Group seeks to ensure that appropriate measures are in
place to prevent the misuse or leakage of personal data,
and shall hold such personal data only for the purpose of
such collection.

The Group’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/Privacy
Policy Statement are made available on its website to
disclose the relevant protection policies to its customers.
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Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption/Anti — money laundering (“AML”)

To build its corporate culture and procedures that stay in
line with laws and regulations as well as ethics, the Group
has established policies on anti-corruption and AML, which
stipulate procedures for screening customers, “know
your customers” policy, rules for archiving and rules for
whistleblowing in case of suspected deals.

Gifts and benefits

The Group has developed its policies against bribery
and the receipt or provision of gifts. In all circumstances,
employees must declare any receipt of gifts or benefits to
the compliance department, which would advise based
on the circumstances, for example whether such gifts or
benefits can be accepted, should be rejected or other ways
of handling.

Policies for handling internal complaints

We have policies for handling internal complaints, whereby
employees may report to the chairman of the board of
directors any improper behaviours on an anonymous basis.
Such improper behaviours include but are not limited to:

o improper behaviours involving financial reporting;
e improper behaviours involving internal control;
e behaviours in violation of any applicable laws;

e behaviours posing threat to the safety or health of the
others; and

e wilful concealment of any one of the above.

Whistleblowers do not face intimidation, retaliation or
improper disciplinary actions in any form as a result of
reporting the aforesaid behaviours. The Company uses
its best endeavours to keep all disclosed information
confidential and to handle the same in a prudent manner.
Without consent of the respective employees, the Company
will not disclose the identity of the reporting employees.
However, under certain circumstances such as where it
becomes necessary to initiate litigation procedures due to
investigation, the Company may be required by law or be
obliged under law to disclose the identity of the reporting
employees. In such event, all reasonable steps will be taken
by the Company to ensure that such employees will not get
affected. Any acts to harass or affect the whistleblowers will
be considered serious misconducts and once established
would result in termination of employment.
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Customer services

Dedicated customer services have bestowed on the Group
trust and support from its customers. With clear and
black-and-white internal procedures, the Group impartially
and rapidly investigates and resolves all disputes and
complaints. As an integrated financial services provider,
we have set up service teams that are comprised of
different professionals to provide diversified financial
services, including securities brokerage, margin financing,
commodities and futures brokerage, bullion trading,
forex trading and so forth. As of 31 March 2018, 151 of
the Group’s employees were persons licenced by the
Securities and Futures Commission to engage in one or
more of the regulated activities.

During the Year, the Group was granted the following
accolades with its caring and professional service attitudes:

—  “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award” granted
by Economic Digest

- “Software and Applications — Outstanding Mobile
Apps for Securities Transactions” under “Hong
Kong Digital Brand Awards 2017” granted by Metro
Broadcast and The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer
Industry

—  “Listed Company Award of Excellence 2017” granted
by Hong Kong Economic Journal and PR ASIA

- “Hong Kong Top Service Brand” granted by Hong
Kong Brand Development Council

—  “Outstanding Brokerage Company 2017” granted at
the “15th China’s Financial Annual Champion Awards”
organized by Hexun.com
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Community
Community investment

Recognizing the responsibility of a good corporate citizen to
contribute to the community, the Group has long maintained its
eagerness to serve and give back to the community, with active
participation in various community activities. The management of
the Group advocates staff participation in philanthropic deeds, to
arouse attention to the community and drive further participation
from other people in community services.

The Group has been supporting a charitable organization named
“Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation” as a diamond sponsor for
7 years in the philanthropic running event called “Joyful Charity
Run” and obtained a “Caring Company Award”. During the Year,
the Group donated HK$100,000 to this organization.

The Group donated HK$100,000 to Louis Mak Charitable
Foundation as a token of care and appreciation to the elderly
during the year.

The Group also donated HK$30,000 to Pok Oi Hospital in
support of the hospital’s provision of free-of-charge medical
services in Yuen Long District during the year.

For years, the Group has donated to Rev. Bro. Paul Sun
Education Foundation in support of the construction of school
facilities, scholarships for primary and secondary schools,
educational activities and community. During the Year, the
Group donated HK$23,000 to this foundation.

The Group has also been awarded the following certificates of
appreciation:

—  “Caring Company Award” granted by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

Caring Company Scheme

L
. BG)
caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and complying with regulatory requirements, to secure
and uplift confidence of shareholders as well as potential investors. In
order to meet expectations of the public and shareholders and fulffill
its commitment to good corporate governance, the Board reviews
the Company’s corporate governance practices from time to time.

Throughout the Year, the Company has fully complied with the
Corporate Governance Codes and Corporate Governance Report
(“CG Codes”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the Company’s
long term corporate strategy, oversee the management of the Group,
and evaluate the business performance. In addition, the Board has
established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee; and has delegated various responsibilities
to these committees under the Board as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises six Directors, half of whom are non-executive
directors independent from the management. The Board is
responsible for formulating the overall strategies of the Company,
ensuring the availability of sufficient funds and resources for
implementing such strategies, overseeing the financial position of the
Company, and complying with laws and regulations in the course
of business operations. All members of the Board possess the skills
and experience required by the businesses of the Group. As at 31
March 2018, the Board comprised three executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman), Mr. Hui Yik Bun (CEO) and Mr. Chan
Wing Shing, Wilson; and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai,
Joseph. The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this
annual report.
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During the Year, the Company was in full compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, with three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board throughout the year. In addition, Mr.
Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph have the appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting and related financial
management experience. The Company has received written
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors of
his independence from the Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum. Mr.
Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
concurrently are directors of several subsidiaries of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, there are no other relationships between
the Board members, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company acknowledges the importance of diversity at the
Board in contributing to the quality of performance of the Company.
The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy. In determining
the composition of the Board, the Company takes into account a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional specialization,
experience, skills, knowledge and other qualifications. Appointment of
Directors is solely based on meritocracy. The Board Diversity Policy
is among the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.
Furthermore, the Company also takes into consideration its own
business model and specific needs form time to time in determining
the optimal composition of the Board.

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings.
All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a
schedule of matters is addressed to the Board and the Directors
are invited to include matters of special concerns for discussion in
the agenda. All Directors have access to the Board papers and all
related materials, and are provided with adequate information by the
management to enable the Board to make informed decisions on the
matters to be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings have
sufficient details of the matters discussed at Board meetings which
are prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are opened
for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to access to the
management for enquiries about further information, when required,
and the Directors can obtain independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense.
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During the Year, four regular Board meetings and a general meeting
were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to the regular
Board meetings and general meeting are as follows:

Name of Director

Executive Directors: HITESE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BIRMTE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun FHAEW

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson PRk S A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES :
Mr. Yu Yun Kong REM A

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AR &
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph EEE LA

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package from the company secretary ensuring
that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s operation,
business, the relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
governance policies. The Company Secretary also provides the
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from
time to time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the Year, the Company arranged Directors to join
seminars on Cyber Crimes and Prevention organised by the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In addition, the Directors are updated with
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all Directors.

56

AR EFRRBINAEERENERR
REFEAE - SEFREFRTHEARMIAR
ZHBEFENT -

Number of

Number of general
regular Board meetings
meetings attended
HEETHESEE HERRAE
BRZRE ZIRE
4/4 1/1

4/4 1/1

4/4 0/1

4/4 1/1

4/4 11

4/4 11

HEEXER

BEHRAIEFTSRAPWERME2AE TARE
BHARSE - BEREHADRZEE X5
BER - EMARBIRERHRAREY) T - AR
ENMETHREEESSMN EMARRREMBRA
M BHREE -

AN ARREGRSEBEREE2EBFERRE
Al DA At PIRE B H AN R R R BER AN - AR
B ANREIR T REmRER RN T REHEER
HBEBEEESEROMATE - UHd - EFET
REFERE MR MEMERERN&NER
NHEREERESHAEETLEMT °

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Corporate Governance Report

TRERwmE

ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In relation to regular Board meetings, notice of at least 14 days
shall be given to Directors allowing them to have sufficient time to
participate. Meanwhile, Agendas and meeting documents are sent
to all Directors three days prior to the respective meeting to ensure
that Directors have sufficient time to familiarize themselves with the
matters to be discussed and to play their roles of supervision. For
meetings of committees under the Board, notice of at least 14 days
shall also be given to Directors, and agendas and meeting documents
are also sent to all Directors three days prior to the respective
meeting.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes
and financial information, and also entitled to make enquiry to the
management regarding operating data and financial information of the
Company. The management must submit the information requested
by the Directors within reasonable time so that the Board can play its
role effectively.

Further, the Company provides all Directors with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, financial position and prospects, so that
Directors are well aware of the affairs of the Group and can in turn
perform its duties under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of three years, which will automatically be
renewable for one successive year, and will continue thereafter unless
and until terminated by either party giving the other prior notice in
writing (not less than three months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and
Mr. Hui Yik Bun; and not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan
Wing Shing, Wilson). They are subject to retirement from office by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).
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CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. Each
of the three independent non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a fixed term of one year, which will automatically be
renewable for one successive year, and will continue thereafter unless
and until terminated by either party by giving the other party a three
months’ prior notice in writing. All three independent non-executive
Directors are also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
by shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company
according to the provisions of the Articles.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if there are not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, should retire from office by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.
Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board should hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

The compliance manual of the Company (the “Compliance Manual”)
has been prepared by the Company with reference to relevant
regulatory guidelines and other industry best practices, setting out
ethical standards, values and specific obligations on topics such as
dealing in securities, anti-money laundering and personal benefits,
thereby ensuring that all Directors, management members and
staff members abide by the ethics and integrity in compliance with
standards of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
CEOQO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip Mow Lum acts
as the Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr. Hui Yik Bun acts as
CEOQO.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its
responsibilities and conforms to good corporate governance practices
and procedures. In addition, he is also responsible for ensuring that all
Directors are sufficiently briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and that all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. The CEQO is responsible for day-to-day
management and administration of the Group’s business, including
the implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. None of them are
involved in the day-to-day management of the Company. Mr. Yu Yun
Kong is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements), examining the
Company'’s financial reporting system and procedures for internal
supervision and control, and making recommendations to the Board
on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and the
fixing of the audit fee, etc. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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The work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year included
the review and approval of:

e the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2017;

e the interim financial statements of the Company for the six
months ended 30 September 2017; and

e the accounting and financial reporting function.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun BITEAERT oA
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph BB

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG”), be nominated
for re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Yip
Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yip Mow Lum is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s strategy; reviewing the Board’s diversity
policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the Board’s diversity policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual nominated
for directorships; assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO; and
determining the policy for nomination of Directors. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)

Mr. Yu Yun Kong REIMI &

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun BITEAERT oA
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph AEBIE S

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Director
and senior management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; considering salaries
or fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;
and ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the Year are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements in this annual report.
The Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and the
prevailing market rates. The emolument policy of the employees of
the Group is set up on the basis of their performance, qualifications
and competence, as well as market trends. The work performed by
the Remuneration Committee during the Year included the review and
approval of remuneration scheme of the Group and the remuneration
of all Directors and submission of the same to the Board.

Three Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) SEMI S (F/E)

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RIEMERT &
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph EBE S

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hui Yik Bun, an
executive Director and the CEQO, together with three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto
Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee.
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The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are to review
the risk management and internal control systems other than
the financial control and reporting system and to consider major
investigation findings on the risk management and internal control
matters of the Company. The Risk Management Committee is
provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

The work performed by the Risk Management Committee during the
Year included the review of internal control system and risk register to
identify, mitigate and monitor significant risks.

A Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:
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Number of

meeting

attended

Name of Director HEESEZRE
Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) SERI S (FE) 171
Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRmEE 11
Mr. Hui Yik Bun FHAEW 1/
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIEMERT L& 11
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph EBE S 171

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management whose names appear in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section for the Year:

7,000,001-8,000,000
6,000,001-7,000,000
5,000,001-6,000,000
4,000,001-5,000,000
3,000,001-4,000,000
2,000,001-3,000,000

B SREBAEME

TRIMIEZRERERABRE]—SH2E8ER
BREBABRAEEZMEHER -

Number of

persons

AB

1,000,001-2,000,000 3

1-1,000,000 3

Total 42EX 8
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company, and of the results and cash
flow for that period. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and has
applied them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is an external service
provider and was appointed by the Board. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He reports to
the Chairman and CEO and assists the Board to function effectively.
All the Directors could have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary at any time in relation to their duties and
operation of the Board. During the Year, he undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update his knowledge and skills.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the Year, KPMG, the external auditor of the Group, provided
the following services to the Group:

CEVE A

EEAERRMBBM P BRRAERITE -
BRAMBHRRARE LA PHRRART Z MR K
ZHEZEERBRERE - REBEZANFEZHM
BHmiA  EFQCEBRYERRAAE TR
R RAESEXRG RV EREBHE I EERSHY
BHREERREEGEL  (FHFERAIE 2 A
Kfhat  WERSEKEEEREUMERE -

DNEWE

RAMERSELEERINEIRBIZMNE  HEFS
R - WARBEFHFAREHAGEREE - R
BN EMITRAB ARG REBRANEASE
REE - WATFERITHARER  LiHBHESS
BRUEE - FTEESORIERIEBRENESSE
EEERARMESRKER MRS - RAFE - 2
AMEE2E N DIGENRNFERE - UE
 EL A A RE

B % BED

RAREE - RNEE 2 SNEZBEN R F R A A% B2
AT AR -

HK$’000
Service rendered FriR RS FHET
Audit services BRI
Annual audit FEEZ 1,378
Non-audit services BRI
Interim review rh HZR 241
Taxation service %R 49
Total 4act 1,668
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness. Hence, such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant
Risk

Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is
primarily responsible for designing and implementing the policies
and procedures of internal controls, while the Board and the Risk
Management Committee oversee the actions of senior management
and review the effectiveness of the controls established on an annual
basis in respect of the financial year.

Risk management of the Group is a continuous process carried out at
all levels of the Group. Each management team is required to identify
the risks in their division faces and classify them into appropriate
categories. All risks identified are given a risk rating which is evaluated
based on the likelihood and consequence of the risks. Mitigation
measures and plans are then developed based on the control gaps
evaluated and the predetermined risk appetite to manage the risks to
an acceptable level.

All risks identified and the corresponding mitigation measures are
recorded in the relevant risk register to facilitate review of the senior
management, the Risk Management Committee and the Board on an
ongoing basis.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function for the Year has been performed
by the Internal Audit Department which has unrestricted access to
review all aspects of the Group’s business activities and is responsible
for quarterly monitoring and reviews on internal and operational
controls. It reports directly to the Chairman of the Board and the Risk
Management Committee.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board have confirmed
that there is no fundamental deficiencies with material adverse
consequences.
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Internal Control System

For the Year, the Board has, through management, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The review covered all material controls over financial, operational and
compliance issues, risk management, information systems security,
the effectiveness of financial reporting and compliance with the Listing
Rules.

In view of the improvements made to the systems and the appropriate
measures taken, the Board considered that the systems are effective
and adequate.

The Board has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Disclosure of Inside Information Manual
to handle and disseminate inside information to comply with the
requisite inside information disclosure requirements as specified
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and propose a person for election as a director. Please see
the detailed procedures as follows:

e the way in which shareholders can convene an
extraordinary general meeting:

Any shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may request the Board of Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The requisition, duly signed by
the shareholder(s) concerned, must clearly state the objects of
the meeting and must be deposited at the head office of the
Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong. The Company takes appropriate action and
make arrangements in accordance with the requirements under
Article 64 of the Articles once a valid requisition is received.
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e the procedure for Director’s nomination and election
by shareholders:

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the head office of the Company at
10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong (i) a notice signed by such shareholder (other
than the proposed person) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting of his/her intention to propose such person for
election; (i) a notice signed by the proposed person indicating
his/her willingness to be elected together with the information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (iii) a written consent by the proposed person for the
publication of his/her personal data.

The period during which the aforesaid notices may be given
within the period of not fewer than seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election, and ending no
later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting. The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements once valid notices are received.

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries to the
Board for the attention of the Company Secretary by post to the
head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary would
direct the enquiries received to appropriate Board Member(s) or the
Chairman of the Board Committee(s) who is in charge of the areas of
concern referred therein for further handling. The Board, assisted by
the Company Secretary, would make its best efforts to ensure that all
such enquiries are addressed in a timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has compiled
a Shareholders Communication Policy and established various
channels of communication with its shareholders, such as publication
of interim and annual reports, press releases and announcements
of the latest development of the Company in a timely manner. The
annual general meetings provide an opportunity for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman and members of
different committees are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors and details of the proposed resolutions are set out in a
circular.

The financial and other information relating to the Group has been published

on the websites of the Stock Exchange (http://Awww.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (http://www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, while the
principal activity of the Group is the provision of financial services,
including securities broking, margin financing, commodities & futures
broking and bullion trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the Year
contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the Year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 23 to 38 and the Environmental Policies can be found in the
ESG report on pages 44 to 53 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key stakeholders
including employees and customers.

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to employees
and ensures all of them are reasonably remunerated. The Company
regularly reviews and updates its policies on remuneration and
benefits, training as well as occupational health and safety.
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The Group has the mission to provide excellent customer service
while maintaining long term profitability and business growth. The
Group pays close attention to various stakeholders and maintains
frequent communication with them, with a view to fully understand
and listen to their appeals and make positive responses based on the
actual circumstances of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and affairs of the Group for the Year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 94 to 183.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 9.10
HK cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2018, subject to
the approval of the final dividend by the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) to be held on
Tuesday, 3 July 2018. If approved, the final dividend will be paid to
the Company’s shareholders on Friday, 20 July 2018. Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Wednesday, 11 July 2018 will be entitled to the proposed final
dividend.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the meeting, from Tuesday, 26 June 2018 to Tuesday, 3 July 2018
(both days inclusive), during this period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to attend and vote at the meeting, shareholders
should ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 June 2018. The
Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 10:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, 3 July 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, from Monday, 9 July 2018 to Wednesday, 11 July
2018 (both days inclusive), during this period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 July 2018.
Shares of the Company will be traded ex-dividend as from Thursday,
5 July 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 26(a) to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to the equity share
holders subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was

HK$789,130,000 (2017: HK$783,141,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$253,000 (2017: HK$225,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the “Five-year
Financial Summary” section on page 184 of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year
or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

On 4 August 2010, the Company conditionally approved and adopted
a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the
Group to grant share options (the “Options”) to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The major
terms of the Scheme are set out as follows:

(i)  The participants include any employees (whether full time or
part time), executives and officers (including Executive and
Non-executive Directors), shareholders, suppliers, customers,
consultants, advisors, business or joint venture partners,
franchisees, contractors, agents or representatives of any
members of the Group;

(i)  The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) provided that the
Company may seek approval from its shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit to the extent
not exceeding 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
the aforesaid shareholders’ approval. The Scheme Mandate
Limited has been refreshed after the approval of the Company’s
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(i)
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shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 8 August
20183. After the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limited,
the maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme
was 118,887,698 shares. However, the maximum number of
shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other share option scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the Company’s issued share capital from time to time;

No Options may be granted to any one person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of Options granted and to be granted to that person in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1%
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time;

There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised save as determined by the Board of
the Company and provided in the offer of grant of Options;

Subject to the terms of the Scheme where any offer of an Option
is proposed to be made to any Director, CEO or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates,
such offer must first be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors; where any grant of Options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or any
of the irrespective associates, would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all Options already granted
and to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant:

e representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and

e having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each offer, in excess of HK$5
million;

then such further grant of Options must be approved by
shareholders;

(i)

(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

()

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the grantee for a period of 28 days from the offer
date. An Option shall have been accepted by the grantee and
to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company on or before 30 days after the offer date. Such
remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable;

The Board shall not make an offer to grant any Option under
the Scheme after a price sensitive event has occurred or a price
sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision until such
price sensitive information has been announced in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. In particular, no
Option shall be granted on any day on which the Company’s
financial results are published and (a) during the period of 60
days immediately preceding the publication date of its annual
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
financial year up to the publication date of the results; and
(b) during the period of 30 days immediately preceding the
publication date of its quarterly results (if any) and half-year
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
quarterly or half-year period up to the publication date of the
results;

The exercise price of an Option shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of:

° the nominal value of a share;

e the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and

e the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date;

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from 25 August
2010.

(vi)

(vii)

(vil)

()

BB 2 AR AR B2 A HERT 28 B HAF]
BEMEE - EARANIEZ AME30HKZ
AT E) — R0 AR A E R BB HBACE
REBBREZIEE NFRIAER N ART]
BB TERERERE 2 RER BB
B EAR AR R ER - Ll AR
AER T AARE ¢

EFEENARFERECFHELR XD
AR EREZFRELRER - TR
BZETEERRNENRERE  BEEZEH
EFERENENREBELTRABELNS
ke BER  RARBHRERMUEEEE
BAX(a)BEEE2FEETHAM60R H
B (BB HE) A BFEFER
EEETIEAHIEEE MOBREFER
(A M FEETIZ B MAT30 A B
H(HBEEHRE) ERFTERF FHREE
HEXGETZHAHIEBER A ERLE
PRt

BREZTEEANMENATESE

o BfEE

s BRORNREZEHEMIAERRERAMN
FIITHE + fo

o ERRZAHNAMERBRMHNER
P BERERMIITFHRHE

ZAAEZ AN T -FTF)/\A-+HH
R+ F -

Other particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding T HRBEBAATES ETIES - BRREEERE
Options held by the Directors, certain employees, consultants and Bt 2B RN A T 2 R 1T EHERE R ARNEE 2
contractors of the Company under the Scheme and its movement & &)zE(E :

during the Year:

Options Options Options

Options  exercised lapsed held at
heldat  during the during 31 March Exercise
1 April 2017 Year the Year 2018 price
RZE-t& KEE KEE RZB-N\E HK$ Exercise Vesting
A-H 2 %Nz =A=t-A Tt Date of grant period  conditions
FHZERE i 1¢ BRE BE2ERE BT b=l e BRI
Executive Directors:
HrES:
Mr. Hui Yik Bun 500,000 - - 500,000 385 28/06/2015 23/06/2015 - Nil
SeEWEE 22/06/2018 pid
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson 400,000 - - 400,000 3.85 28/06/2015 23/06/2015 - Nil
iy it 22/06/2018 id
Independent Non - Executive Directors:
BUFHTES:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong 100,000 - - 100,000 385 28/06/2015 23/06/2015 - Nil
FEMLEE 22/06/2018 pid
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun 100,000 - - 100,000 385 28/06/2015 23/06/2015 - Nil
AfEkHEE 22/06/2018 &
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph 100,000 - - 100,000 385 28/06/2015 28/06/2015 - Nil
REELE 22/06/2018 i
Employees 20,000 - (20,000) - 1.29 27111072014 2110/2014 - Nil
B8 26/10/2017 Eid
6,740,000 - (930,000) 5,810,000 385 28/06/2015 28/06/2015 - Nil
22/06/2018 &
Consultants and Contractors 300,000 (300,000) - - 1.29 271012014 211072014 - Nil
B RARH 261012017 &
700,000 - - 700,000 385 28/06/2015 28/06/2015 - Nil
22/06/2018 i

8,960,000 (300,000) (950,000 7,710,000
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As at 31 March 2018, Options to subscribe for a total of 7,710,000
shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme remained
valid and outstanding and the Options representing approximately
0.5% of the total number of issued shares as at the date of this
report.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the percentage of the Group’s revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest client and the five largest clients in aggregate
were 0.9% and 2.6% (2017: 1.2% and 4.3% respectively)
respectively. The Group’s principal activities are providing securities,
commodities and futures brokerage, margin financing and bullion
trading financial services. In the Board'’s opinion, the Group has no
major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal activities.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, none of
the Directors nor any of their associates nor any shareholders who
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME
The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars of

the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to ensure
that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they receive appropriate
incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chan
Wing Shing, Wilson and Mr. Yu Yun Kong will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Both of them being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages
39 to 43 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employing company within one year
or with payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ liability insurance policy
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate activities. The
coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed
annually by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

EERRS - THIESH2ER

BRTXIHER S, HEBERS | —HEa
S REERIAFEREMAER - AoF - Ak
NA] ~ SEAEAIE A RS E R A B A R E R
AEBEBILENESFERIEERBEAER
ZEH -

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING BEXRS HEBRERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

HE =
AEBE(ERHER) BENEALITLET

HEWZ  HEHEHEERX LHHRAET
REEZFHEHERS

1. Tenancy Agreements 1.

The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements (as
the tenant) with some connected persons, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the

Listing Rules:
Name of Amount for
Transaction counterparty the Year
(Note 1) (Note 2) Term of HK$'000
R5 REUF agreement Address of premises REFHEE
(Hit1) (H1st2) i B LIES S THET
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Victory Beauty Limited 1 April 2016 to 10/F, Wing On House, 10,968
(monthly rental: HK$914,000) as the landlord 31 March 2019 71 Des Voeux Road
RZE—RFZANBR TS ABERDAEREE R4 Central, Central,
(AT : 914,000%7T) mMA—REZE Hong Kong
—ENF BERRERET
=A=+-H T REBAE10E
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Well Point Limited 1 April 2016 to Mezzanine Floor, 4,440
(monthly rental; HK$370,000) as the landlord 31 March 2019 Peter Building,
WZE—~FZAEBF Y ARERATEREE ZT—1F 58-60 Queen’s Road Central,
(A7 : 370,000/ ) mE—HZE 13-17 Stanley Street, Central,
—ENF Hong Kong
—A=1+-H BEPIRT I
13-17TRERKET
58-605 R A E &
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Sea Magic Limited 1 April 2016 to G/F. & Cockloft, 2,568
(monthly rental: HK$214,000) as the landlord 31 March 2019 Nos. 141-145
R-E—R"F-AMBTV 2L PHERAEEAEE —T—1F Kwong Fuk Road,
(A : 214,000%7T) mA—RZE Tai Po, New Tenitories,
—ENF Hong Kong
—A=1+-H EEMANERERE
1411455 T R
EARSEMEEBFRAT | -+ / —\FFR 77
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Name of Amount for
Transaction counterparty the Year
(Note 1) (Note 2) Term of HK$'000
% RAHH agreement Address of premises KEFMEE
(Hiit1) (Hizt2) i LI ES S AT
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Top Sunshine 1 April 2016 to 31 1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 2,160
(monthly rental: HK$180,000) Development Limited ~ March 2019 Nos. 39-41 Argyle Street, Kowloon,
RZE—RFEZRNB:ZHAH as the landlord “T-REF Hong Kong
(A7 + 180,000/ L) HBRERERAR MA—RZz BENEDE 2
ER¥%E ZE-NE V-MF2IHERE
=R=+-A 1228
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Resultever Limited 1 April 2016 to 31 Shop No. 7 on G/F & Cockloft and 2,028
(monthly rental: HK$169,000) as the landlord March 2019 Cockloft Nos.1-6, Tak Lee Building,
RZE—RFZRNB:ZHH Resultever Limited “T-REF No. 993 King’s Road, Quarry Bay,
(R : 169,0007%7T) fER%E mMA—RZ Hong Kong
—E-NF BRHRRREE
=R=+-A 993515 M1E1-65%
BRI R e
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Fortunate State Limited 1 April 2016 to 31 The Entrance (at Left Frontage) of 9,960
(monthly rental: HK$830,000) as the landlord March 2019 Portion A1 of Shops Nos. 6, 7
RIZ-A"FZAMRFUZEY  RABRLRMER%XE —T—1F and 8 on G/F, M/F and 1/F of
(A : 830,000%7T) mMA—RZ Honour House, Nos. 375-381 &
—E-NF 375A-379A Nathan Road, No.
ZA=1+—-H 24 Kansu Street and Nos. 2-10

Woosung Street, Kowloon

B2 AZNIES75-381 ] 375A-379A
5 - HE#245 RRIDME2-10%
SEREG - TREHHAAIE D2
FEEZADHR - BEZER

g2
Tenancy made on 8 November 2016 Peaceful Smart Limited, 15 November 2016 to  Room 2301 & 2302 on 23/F., Wing 7,536
(monthly rental: HK$628,000) as the landlord 31 March 2019 On House, 71 Des Voeux Road
RZE-—AET—ANBILZEY  BRIERAF ZE-—REF Central, Central, Hong Kong
(R : 628,000%7T) fER%EE T—A+HRZE  ABRREHETR
“E-NEF KEEERESE
ZA=+-H 2301}%2302%
TOTAL 39,660
@5t
Notes: Hiat -
1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees, government rent and 1. ABETEIEEEE  mAkEMm -
rates.
2. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum (“Mr. Yip”), Chairman, executive 2. FHEAKRRAER  PITEERITRBRRERMREL
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company. E(TEEEDZBBAL
3. The annual cap for the Year was HK$39,660,000. 3. AFEZFE FRA39,660,00087T

78 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

2.

Financial Services Agreements

Name of
connected person

BEALHE

Mr. Yip and his associates, together as
“Mr. Yip’s Group”
RREREHEAL
G ELEEE]

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (“Mr. Hui") and
his associates

SRR A(FRE]) REBEAL

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
(“Mr. Chan”) and
his associates, together as
“Mr. Chan’s Group”
BT (TR E ) R HBE
AL GRIREESE]

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (“Mr. Yu”) and
his associates

RAEE(REL D REBEAL

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (“Mr. Szeto”) and
his associates

AlfER R A (AL R
HBMEAL

Amount for
the Year
HK$’000
Annual cap rEESH
EELR THET
IPO Annual Cap 2,000,000
BRDRBEEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap 500,000
FREELRE
IPO Annual Cap 100,000
BRDRBEEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap 10,000
FREE LB
IPO Annual Cap 20,000
BRDRBEEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap 10,000
FREE LR
IPO Annual Cap 20,000
BRDRBEEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap 10,000
FREELRE
IPO Annual Cap 20,000
BRDRBEEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap 10,000
FREE LB

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H

2.

RIS

Payment from/

to the Group
AEEZ/
FFEEEzEE

Advance from the Group
TEEZBR

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XHFAEEZHE

Advance from the Group
TEB B

Advance from the Group
TEE 2B

Interest paid to the Group
XN TFREEZFIE

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZFE

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Advance from the Group
FEEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZFE

Maximum
amount for
the Year Amount for
HK$'000 the Year
rEE HK$'000
Bt AEELH
AT THET
1,754,425
282,756
5,252
6,719
766
19
2,937
17
2
1,228
370
3
79
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Maximum
amount for
Amount for the Year  Amount for
the Year  Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
Name of HK$’000 to the Group rEE HK$'000
connected person Annual cap AEESE FEEXM/ BEtE AKEEM4HE
BEALHA EELR TELT (FEEEZER THT THL
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph (“Mr. Ling”)  IPO Annual Cap 20,000  Advance from the Group -
and his associates BRAREEFELR KEE 2850
EEBEAE(DELE D REBEAL  Margin Annual Cap 10,000  Advance from the Group -
FRFELR KEEZBHT
Interest paid to the Group -
IRTFAEEZFIS
Note: Bt -
Mr. Yip, Mr. Hui and Mr. Chan are executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. BhE  HEERREEARQBRITES - REE - A
Szeto and Mr. Ling are independent non-executive Directors of the Company. Mr. TERERERERARBBIUIFNITES - MALEREL
Chan is a nephew of Mr. Yip. 2N o
3. Brokerage Services Agreements 3. RERBEIHR
The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income paid REE - HEBEATRASERE &40
by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage services FRIGFr S A 4e e M A REEE D0 T -

provided by the Group for the Year are set out as below:

Amount for

Annual Cap the Year

HK$'000 HK$’000

Name of connected person FE LR REEFHEE

BEALTHE FAT FAT

Mr. Yip’s Group 10,000 426
HAEEE

Mr. Chan’s Group 1,000 1
PRECESR

4. Annual review of the continuing connected transactions 4. FERER S ZFERT

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the BUIERITESE R LS ERERS YT
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the WRZERS :

transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of @ MAEBEZBER—BERBEFRIL
the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms no b) H—REEERIIETBERAER ST
less favorable to the Group than terms available to or from YREBLE=FE 2 GTHET S R

independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements (© MBEEEEHZE  RAFEERTE
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and RARIREREEE e 2 RG] L °
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the
section headed “Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 77 to 81, have complied with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. However certain transactions are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they
are below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1) or financial
assistances received on normal commercial terms and were fair and
reasonable and were for the benefit of the Group and no security over
the assets of the Group was granted in respect of those transactions
under Rule 14A.76(2).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors and the CEO of the Company
and their respective associates had the following interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”):

BARSEMKRETRAT | — Tt/ —/\FFR

ARRIZBENCERE - UWRBERBZER
FAZERIB000(fER]) [ L M1 5 B #L B At B
ML BEE A ] - W2 REB ST A SE
2 B HAE 74055 @R E B ETRAD
POl B BE XX 5 AR B b 1 IR AR B 2
TEEERXZELRSE - REIRLEHHRA
SE14A.5616% - BRI E st H B RSB ATIKEE
IRBERERHCEEHERNER  BHE
BHEREERZ &M - ARR]E RBRA
PR AZERAM L B o

BEEALRS

AEBENBREEBRETETIEAMEALRS
ZHBENGREPBHRRMEIIA - RELTH
AEKEER S, FHERER S (FNFET7TES1A
(BER S/ HEEERS | —H) 2ZEWEAL
RHEET ETRANE4AE - A - ETRH%E
BB T ETRASVUASHRERTE R EH
R SRR IEF14A.76(1) {5 H9 SR AK K F 3 P Y ER
MR R —REAEREREBAFRBEYNA
AEEMZE - REERLF14AT6RE T 2ZFR
HERREENEE

EERARERRE O RIABR 2
m

RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H ARAEERITHE
BLREES B CMEARKRT 2 RAARERD
REAA TR - MZxERaTREKEFINE
{E=BI)FE352{5 R E BT 2 B et ARCER AR IE
(LHBETABFETESFR S ZBETAD(R2E
SR D AR E AR A MBS P2 f e
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(A) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (A) RADQTRED RIEERG 2ER
Company

Number of Approximate

shares and percentage of

Long/short underlying the issued

Name of Director Nature of interest positions shares share capital

ROHERER GMERTREZ

EEnE HEmtE KA R 2 # 2 BRORDL

(%)

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note) Interest in a controlled Long position 900,000,000 53.02%
EEMEE (M7 corporation e

ST NEL T

Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 234,410,280 13.81%
BRMEE EmfaA Sy

Mr. Hui Yik Bun Beneficial owner Long position 1,100,000 0.06%
FTAEW S EmfaA HRE

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Beneficial owner Long position 400,000 0.02%
BRI SE AE EmfaA Sy

Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner Long position 708,829 0.04%
REDMI L EmfaA Sy

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun Beneficial owner Long position 731,666 0.04%
BlfEEI RS EmfaA Sy

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner Long position 310,700 0.01%
AR EmfaA "R

Note: Bz -

900,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum is deemed to be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors or the CEO of the Company or their respective
associates had any interest or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

900,000,000f% B {5 AT R AL B R R FFH - Mt A
FIMEFEGEREEAMEEZERA - ALt - EEmMEL
WRRRZERD P HEAER

B EXHEN RZE-NF=ZA=+—
B ARABIZRES  THARRIEFEELZ
8 A TREER QB KEATAAEREE
(R(EH LB EGRPI)DEXVEE 2 EE) <
Betn ~ AR HES T EE E RSO
B MzEEEIARZREGEF S
1) S 36216 R E AT < BRL M A PTRCER
KRB R ETRIZAMG AR F MBE R PT 2 42

E_o
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(B) Share options

The interests of the Directors and CEO in the share options of
the Company are detailed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” on pages 71 to 75 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and CEO (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company or its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors and chief executives) in the shares or the
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Nature of interest

BmME

Name of Shareholder

EEns

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

New Charming Holdings Limited (Note)
MRAERBR QB (H5E)

Note:

900,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is
deemed to have an interest in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, there was no other
person who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H

Long/short positions
B/ %R

Long position
e

(B) BERAE

BEENTHRARNARRBREZERNS
TE75E| BT 8 | — it -

B EXCTIRERSN - MEREMAEMR SE=
RITHAES(BREEZEBRERMI8HRL T
OBMERR  BRIITEEMBE(GES R
HIE R PI)A T EE Rl REB AR R S AR E
Bt (HARBRAERRES - WER) 2R

TERRNRAEDARE P ZBE KR
B

RZZE-N\F=ZA=1t—H  BREEHFLIEK
FIVEXVERFE2 R FIN HBBMEANRR] - SHALE
RIRIECRE 7 R B 5G] £ 3B IR M EARTFLZE
Mz ARARROEBERO 2 EERR(EER
ERITBABRINERIT -

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the issued
shares and share capital
underlying (%)
Shares {HERTRAZ
BRAEE R BMABDE
HERD 2z (%)

900,000,000 53.02%

Wit

900,000,000/%f 5 BT REAIEIRE R A A (EEE F FE XMt
E2ERAZARFE Bt ERMEEWBEANZERD
PR o

B EXEEN R=F-N\F=ZA=1+—H #E
HATRARR RO HABERD T - BHERE
(BH LG GBI EXVERFE2 M 337 B E AR
ARBHE - LECHEMMRIB(E SR RIERG)DFH
336 MEAF T < Bl - HBREMA NG
KRR R R P 2 (AR BOR R
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors, as at the date of
this report, there has been sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on pages
54 to 67 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs. KPMG, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG as the independent auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they
are advised to consult an expert.

RELRBRE
BEFARTREZ AWM RBESE R - B
EEHEEH - ARADBTRG R EB5%H
ARFAE A LTRAMREZ AR ARBEE
R o

EEEYN

A AR R AT R ER AR RS
BEUAWL TR RITRAL -

ERER

ARRFRMZ EELEEARRMARERE

BAZOTAZ [ EE RS | —H °

BREVFIITES 2B UM

ARFEFEEEIIITEE 2 FERRE - R
RESNE LRSS IS B - ARAR
AREBUHRTEFHRBTAL -

B BN

BE_ T \F=ZA=t—RULEFEZHBHRRE
BESHEHMEBMER  REESTAELM
BREERRBFASHERKRE - HEAEBIALR
BEREE EFEERNEREBRAFAS L &
2EREFH ST EHAMRAR LA ZRE

BRZEXBBRER
WANFRERERTEHE 55 - e - B2

TTEARBBREBG RN 2 RGEE - EF
WEHEBBERAL
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Board of Directors has selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going
concern basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy
at any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
23 May 2018

RABSEREMABLAF | =T L/ —/\FFH
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EFE2ARAARASMBIHEREE LA iR
AEBZEZHIRN - ZMRAEELRRERE 2K
B RNREBE—_T-\F=ZA=T—BLFEZ
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To the shareholders of Bright Smart Securities & Commodities
Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 94 to 183, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

bcbnac

BT ESCMEMERAARK
(RAAEHBHMA L HRAR)
=R

Az SR 1T (A T REITBI M) BB IIEH R F 4
Z183E R BHFemEEERAG([ERAD R
HiB AR ([EEEDMEREMBRE - ia
BREBER-Z— )\ FZAZ+—HNEGEATH
MRE  BEZALFENGAEEREE 6
EREHRIGABRERER - UREAMBIRE
Bt BREEBESERME -

BHRR  ZEFAVBBRREREBT LA
2([BESHMAE )RMAEBHMBEREE)
([BEMBHREEN DEEARAFBRR B5HE
R-B-N\FZA=+—HNGEEMBRRLEE
ZHALFENGEEMBRAMGARTRE » UD
BREB(RAUEPD 2 BHEENZ HES -

RREE

B REZ B GRS RANEBETLER)
(IBBEFER DETERZTE - HAINZFER
THEEERSARBMREZSE PV ERERA
EENEESOFL - REBEGMAREMZ
(BEEtmBzER TN TR @ EREER
SHEEXREMBRREMOETMBREER -
B E5E - BRMACREZFEERRTR
BITEMEREE - RFIEE - RIFIPTERNET
BREETELEEHARMNE RIRHEER
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P ERT FHRARBERMNERHE - RAYHAH
RAVBHREANBIRASERNTIA - BLEFHE
ERMEFERGAVERRL L AZRRETR
BE - BT SHELSREHREBNER -
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Revenue recognition — Brokerage commission income

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 116.

The Key Audit Matter

Brokerage commission income represented
57% of the total revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

Brokerage commission income arising from
brokerage trading of securities, commodities
and futures is recognised on a trade date
basis. Volume rebates to customers are
recognised as a reduction in brokerage
commission income when payment of the
rebate is probable and the amounts can be
estimated reliably.

We identified the recognition of brokerage
commission income as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk that the
timing of recognition of revenue could be
manipulated to meet specific targets or
expectations.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of brokerage commission
income included the following:

*  assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls relating to revenue
recognition;

o developing an expectation of
brokerage commission income
and volume rebates for the current
year based on our consideration of
trading volumes, commission rates
and historical data, comparing our
expectation with the actual brokerage
commission income recorded by
the Group and investigating any
significant differences between
our expectation and the amounts
recorded by the Group;

o comparing details of journal entries
raised during the current year which
affected revenue with underlying
documentation on a sample basis;
and

o for the key underlying systems used
for the processing of transactions
in relation to brokerage commission
income, trading volumes, commission
rates and volume rebates, we utilised
our information technology specialists
to assess the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of a
selection of relevant key internal
controls including controls over
access to these systems and controls
over data and change management.

BARSEMKRETRAT | — Tt/ —/\FFR
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Impairment assessment of accounts receivable from margin
clients

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the 2GRN BHREWITF17TREI134E1368 2 @t

accounting policies on page 134 to 136.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 March 2018 accounts receivable from
margin clients totalled HK$10,327 million,
representing 82% of the Group's total
assets.

Impairment of accounts receivable from
margin clients is a subjective area due to the
level of judgement applied by management
in determining impairment allowances.

Margin clients are required to pledge
securities as collateral in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading. The
amount of credit facilities granted to
margin clients is determined based on the
discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group as collateral.

From the Group’s perspective, the accounts
receivable from margin clients which
gave rise to the greatest uncertainty in
determining impairment allowances were
those where the receivables were subject to
potential collateral shortfalls.
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How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess
impairment of accounts receivable from
margin clients included the following:

* understanding and assessing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key internal
management controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring
of accounts receivable from margin
clients and collateral shortfalls and
impairment assessment procedures;

* evaluating management’s
assessment of impairment allowances
by inspecting the margin shortfall
report;

o assessing the valuation of collateral
held for a sample of accounts
receivable balances as recorded in
margin shortfall report with publicly
available market prices;

o assessing the existence of collateral
by comparing a sample of securities
held as collateral as extracted from
the Group’s records with third party
statements from brokers or clearing
houses;
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How the matter was addressed in our
The Key Audit Matter audit
Impairment allowances are estimated by e
management once objective evidence of
impairment becomes apparent for accounts
receivable that were individually significant at
each reporting date. Management exercises
judgement in determining the quantum of
loss based on the range of factors. These
include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the borrower and
collateral valuation. Management assessed
the value of collateral held at the reporting
date, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to quoted prices.

for the key underlying systems used
for the processing of transactions
in relation to accounts receivable
from margin clients, we utilised our
information technology specialists to
assess the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of a
selection of relevant key internal
controls including controls over
access to these systems and controls
over data and change management.

We identified assessing impairment of
accounts receivable from margin clients as a
key audit matter because the assessment of
the appropriate level of impairment requires
the application of significant management
judgement.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND OUR AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ko Sze Man.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

23 May 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-\F=A=+—BIEFECUETIIR)

Revenue WA 3 944,440 562,517
Other income Hibezs 4 164,414 105,898
Other net gain H At s F 58 5 46,247 21,939
1,155,101 690,354
Staff costs 2 THA 8(0) (138,937) (109,688)
Amortisation and depreciation BERITE (18,768) (11,100)
Other operating expenses Hih & &M 6(c) (229,824) (196,978)
Profit from operations KRR 767,572 372,588
Finance costs BATER AN 6(a) (166,980) (57,999)
Profit before taxation BB AT R 6 600,592 314,589
Income tax PS5t 7 (84,493) (42,679)
Profit for the year FRER 516,099 271,910
Other comprehensive income FREMZ2EKES :
for the year:
ltems that may be reclassified HgngeEFHosEE
subsequently to profit or loss HBErIEE
— Net movement in investment — A HIEERE S IRE
revaluation reserve of EERESE
available-for-sale securities 10 2,606 (13,561)
— Exchange reserve —E R (365) 192
Total comprehensive income EaRREGFER
attributable to equity 2ENSEEE
shareholders for the year 518,340 258,541
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (cents) AL 11 30.41 16.02
Diluted (cents) s () 11 30.41 16.02

The notes on pages 99 to 183 form part of these financial statements. £990F 1838 2 MBI H B SR E P L
Details of dividends declared for the year are set out in note 26(b). 2 o FAT IR E 2 FBEEHRHIFE26(0) ©
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At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZ—\F=ZA=+—BUABTIIR)

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BEMEE 13 24,231 22,476
Intangible assets mREE 14 7,867 -
Available-for-sale securities AEHERE S 15 61,809 7,018
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE B 25(b) 4,029 2,381
Other receivables, deposits Hib WA « e

and prepayments KIEFOR 18 5,289 16,948
Other non-current assets HA3EmE & E 16 110,422 71,900
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 213,647 120,723
Current assets RENEE
Accounts receivable FEUAR X 17 11,885,526 7,788,352
Other receivables, deposits HibfEWFIE ~ 12

and prepayments WNSELNE O 18 27,347 14,219
Tax recoverable AREIFIA 25(a) 697 2,756
Cash and cash equivalents R NESZEY 19(a) 511,887 596,903
Total current assets REBEERE 12,425,457 8,402,230
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable FEfFARER 21 1,705,125 1,174,196
Accrued expenses and other payables FEET RIS R E th B FRIE 22 86,178 50,109
Held for trading investments BIEEERBIRE 420 -
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERNMIRITEX 23 8,165,885 5,096,000
Current taxation BNEATR IR 25(a) 44,495 2,863
Total current liabilities REEEHEEE 10,002,103 6,323,168
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,423,354 2,079,062
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 2,637,001 2,199,785
Non-current liability ERBAB
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEAE 25(b) 39 94
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,636,962 2,199,691
BABFEMEEBRLAF | —=—t/ —\FER 95




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZE-N\F=ZA=+—HAAETIIR)

EQUITY xR
Share capital A&7 26 509,189 509,099
Share premium AR (B 26 738,020 737,677
Exchange reserve M S 26 15 380
Investment revaluation reserve Y& B LG 26 3,977 1,371
Merger reserve BOoHEE 26 (20,000) (20,000)
Share option reserve B AR 26 7,399 8,341
Retained profits {RER i F) 26 1,398,362 962,823
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,636,962 2,199,691
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 KBV _Z— \FHA - +=BHELRET]
May 2018 %
Directors
5%
Yip Mow Lum Hui Yik Bun
EEM EW

The notes on pages 99 to 183 form part of these financial statements.  $£99%E 1838 Z M s A It S A REE A D ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_T— \E=ZA=+—BUEFEUCBTIITR)

Investment Share
Share Share  Exchange revaluation Merger option  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits

REEf
Bx  RftEE  EXGG BE oHEE BRERE  REEA
§1000 $000 §1000 $000 §1000 §1000 §1000
tr r r tr tr n tr

At 1 April 2016 RZE-~EMA-A 508,966 737,216 188 14,932 (20,000 1,104 784938 2,037,344

Changes in equity for the year HZ-F-tF=A=1+-H

ended 31 March 2017: LEEVREEE
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - gl 27910
Other comprehensiveincome Rt 2ENE - - 192 (13,561) - - - (13,369)
Total comprehensive income FREAURER

for the year - - 192 (13,561) - - 211,910 268,541
Dividend paid during the year AR 2600} - - - - - - 6715 (96719
Shares issued under the BRESEETRES

share option scheme R 26(0) 133 461 - - - 73 - 521

Transfer of share option reserve R U RIE L E R
upon the forfeture of share BIRERE

options - - - - - (2,690 2,690 -
At 31 March 2017 R-E-t£=A=1-A 509,099 731,677 380 131 (20,000 8,341 962,823 2,199,691
At1 April 2017 RZE-tEmA-A 509,099 131,671 380 1,371 (20,000) 8,341 962,823 2,199,691

Changes in equity for the year HZ-E-N\E=A=1+-A

ended 31 March 2018: LEEVRREE
Proft for the year EREF - - - - - - 516009 516,000
Other comprehensiveincome K ff 2% - - (365) 2,606 - - - 2,241
Totel comprehensiveincome~ ERZENEEE

for the year - - (365) 2,606 - - 516,099 518,340
Dividend paid duing the year ~~ ERIEMKE 26(0)fi) - - - - - - (81456)  (81,456)
Shares issued under the BREEETEES

share option scheme Rin 26(c) 90 343 - - - (46) - 387

Transfer of share opfion reserve U RIEAE R
upon the forfeiture of share ElhEGE
options - - - - - (896) 896 -

At 31 March 2018 R=8-N\FZA=t1-A 509,189 738,020 15 3917 (20,000 7399 1308362 2,636,962

The notes on pages 99 to 183 form part of these financial statements.  $99F 1838 Z M s &R It S Mz E A5 ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-\F=A=+—BIEFECUETIIR)

Operating activities R TEE
Cash used in operations SIS AIE S 19(b) (2,905,250) (2,467,048)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEAMEH (42,505) (65,616)
Net cash used in operating activities RESTEFTARESFE (2,947,755) (2,532,664)
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of available-for-sale securities BEAMMEERS (274,973) (427,128)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE (13,120) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale  H & A] fH§4E 54

securities FriS 5808 234,159 631,607
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WEK

plant and equipment JEFTS IR 4 -
Proceeds from disposal of held for HERIEEERENRE

trading investment FriSaAE 2,338 3,092
Payment for purchase of property, BEME - BEX

plant and equipment BEINEN (15,629) (10,025)
Dividend received B E 232 1,599
Interest received BUFIE 86,167 51,307
Net cash generated from RETBHFAEBRESFHE

investing activities 19,178 250,452
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERATS A 3,490,731 2,108,000
Dividend paid BRI E (81,456) (96,715)
Interest paid ERFE (166,980) (57,999)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T BERRAEFT IS FR0E 387 521
Net cash generated from RMETEMEREFE

financing activities 3,242,682 1,953,807
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRESZEY

cash equivalents i, (R ) R 314,105 (328,405)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RUA—BZRER

REZEY 162,903 508,442
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes [EZ=# )~ 2/& 34,879 (12,134)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March R=B=1+—HAzHBH&K
HEZEY 19(a) 511,887 162,903

The notes on pages 99 to 183 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SR ey

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the
Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 August
2009 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802
West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(*HKICPA”), and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Amendments to Statement of Cash Flows:
HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Income taxes: Recognition
of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SH SN - ABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

100

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except
that financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities and held for trading investments are stated at
their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs require management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

(c)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and
future years.

Basis of consolidation

U]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intragroup transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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P e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SH SN - ABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c¢) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

U]

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)) unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses as if they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities or business first
came under the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or business
are recognised at the carrying values prior to the
common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include the
results of each of the combining entities or business
from the earliest date presented or since the date
when combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the entities
or businesses had been combined at the previous
reporting date or when they first came under control
of the controlling parties, whichever is shorter.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(n)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SR ey

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold Shorter of the unexpired

improvements term of lease and 3 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 5 years
- Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include club and school debentures.

The intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)). Amortisation begins when the asset is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended. Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Debentures are amortised over the unexpired term
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

104

(e)

®

(g)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group has the use of assets
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial assets into following
categories: available-for-sale securities, held for trading
investments, loans and receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group classifies financial liabilities into the other
financial liabilities category.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SR ey

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

U]

(ii)

RAESeMEERRAR| —F

Financial assets and financial liabilities -
recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables
when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade
date.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
Substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control
over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets — measurement

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as another
category of financial assets. Available-for-sale
investments comprise equity securities and debt
securities. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably are carried at cost. All
other available-for-sale investments are measured at
fair value after initial recognition.

—t/ = \FFR

2 BEREFBE#®)

(g ETWMTRM®E)

U]

(ii)

TREENRETRAE -BRRIUK

EE-&
AEBRER K EYFIEES 2 A
ELHER - TEEMERMEENR

BERRZE BENSHER -

Y IR &R 2 & KRR ZNH - =
EW%%E$§IEL§%ﬁ%%
AR D L K MR - kA KERE
*L%ﬁ*% %ﬁ%m%k%
2\ % [B] ¥ B 7 5= 81 3f S8 R A 22
B AIAKRER IERSRHE
E o AREGZE R R T B

BEEENREN T IESSEE
AR HEEXAE -
AEBREHWEECET  BUEX

JEmES A LR SR B -

2 (RER)AEEAGAENEK A
*EF%%%’EH%E&J%%@ & 5 5[] B 42
REENSEAERN SHEES
BEMEEHEE  BRFENT BN
MRET

TRMEE-E

R EH 5
A ECRMEEBIEETE AR #
fﬁﬁiliﬁ’\*ﬁﬁﬁ\m*ﬁ%]/ﬁrﬂﬁ
ENETESREE - AI#EER
EXTEOREBRAZTARELEES
EREARAFEEELSZF2OR
BHILWATI R - FIRTHERE
FrEEMar#igEREYE A AYE

HE -

105




Notes to the Financial Statements
P e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

106

Financial assets - measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale securities (Continued)

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss when the Group becomes
entitled to the dividend (see Note 2(p)(v)). Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss (see Note 2(h)(i)).

Other fair value changes, other than impairment
losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and presented in the investment revaluation reserve
within equity. When the investment is derecognised,
the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured initially at fair
value, which normally will be equal to the transaction
price. Transaction costs are expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the date
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, using trade date accounting.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss comprise financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are carried at fair value. Changes
in the fair value are included in the income statement
in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale
proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is
included in the income statement.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is based on their quoted market prices
at the end of reporting period without any deduction
for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities
are priced at current asking prices.
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(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial assets - measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalent includes cash at banks and on hand, and
demand deposits with banks and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

Financial liabilities — measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on
their quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid
prices, while financial liabilities are priced at current
asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price
nor a quoted market price on a recognised stock
exchange or a price from a broker/dealer for non-
exchange traded financial instruments or if the market
for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using valuation techniques that provide a
reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained in
actual market transactions. The inputs of the valuation
techniques are based on market data.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

108

(h) Impairment of assets

U]

Impairment of investments in equity securities,
subsidiaries and accounts receivable and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities, subsidiaries and
accounts receivable and other receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(h)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(h)(ii).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXE:EE 2

(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (hy EERE

() Impairment of investments in equity securities,
subsidiaries and accounts receivable and other
receivables (Continued)

—  For accounts receivable and other receivables
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

110

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

U]

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity securities,

subsidiaries and accounts receivable and other

receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting date to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased.

—  property, plant and equipment; and
— intangible assets

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the period in which
the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SH SN - ABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

0)

(k)

()

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, and demand deposits with banks. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(m) Employee benefits

112

()  Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXE:EE 2

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued) (m) EERF#E)

(i)  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at the grant date using the
Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-settled share-
based payment arrangements involving employees
of subsidiaries, the cost is recognised in “Investment
in subsidiaries” and credited to the “Share option
reserve” over the vesting period. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or
the vested option expires (when it is released directly
1o retained profits).

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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BA RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SH SN - ABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

114

(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXE:EE 2

(Continued)

m) FIEH(#)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

116

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

() Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised on a
trade date basis when the relevant transactions are
executed. Volume rebate to customers is recognised
as a reduction in brokerage commission income
when payment of the rebate is probable and the
amounts can be estimated reliably. The fair value of
the consideration received or receivable in respect of
the initial trade under customer loyalty programmes
is allocated between the award credits and other
components of the trade by reference to their relative
fair value. The amount of revenue recognised shall be
based on the number of the awards credits that have
been redeemed in exchange of free or discounted
brokerage service, relative to the number expected to
be redeemed.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii) Income from bullion trading
Income from bullion trading is recognised when the
related services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iii)

(iv) Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are recognised

when the related services are rendered.

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
(vi) Investment trading
Income from investment including realised fair value
gains or losses on trading investment on a trade date
basis.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

118

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on
behalf of its customers. These assets arising thereon are
excluded from the consolidated financial statements, as
they are not assets of the Group.

Related parties

)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1)
@

©)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parents.

An entity is related to the Group is any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party.
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(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s)

(t)

RAESeMEERRAR| —F

Related parties (Continued)

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (j).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of the Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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B R R IR ML

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEAN - UBTHIR)

3 REVENUE 3 WA
The principal activities of the Group are securities broking, REBTFBEKAFSKL HAERE B
margin financing, commodities and futures broking and bullion MR EEEREARIEESRS
trading.
The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows: BEEZHEFWASE
Brokerage commission Bae 536,016 361,593
Dealing income from bullion trading RESX WA 19,086 14,071
Interest income from margin financing IFREVEF B UA 360,058 181,974
Interest income from IPO financing BRXAFEERERNBUA 29,280 4,879
944,440 562,517
The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer had AEBRFAMERE  HEES —2FPETT
transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue. 2R BEREBRPAI0% ©
4 OTHER INCOME 4 Hittlzs
Interest income from FLEWAKRE
— Authorised institutions — R A 51,985 30,290
— Cash clients = 33,816 20,798
- Others —Hf 366 219
86,167 51,307
Handling and settlement fees FEELEEEBR 75,294 48,617
Dividend income AR A 232 1,599
Sundry income HIFU A 2,721 4,375
164,414 105,898
5 OTHER NET GAIN 5 HitWzm=FE
Realised gain from B[R B
- Available-for-sale securities — A HIEER S 11,371 31,794
— Held for trading investments —FEEEARKRE 2,338 3,092
Unrealised loss from REREERE
— Held for trading investments —RHIEEERABRKRE (420) -
13,289 34,886
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNE U ER (B518) F 58 34,065 (12,351)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEYWE  HE&
equipment HiEkEE (378) (36)
Error trades arising from dealings BB S (259) (52)
Others EAth (470) (508)
46,247 21,939
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BA RS IR AR Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B - LABITTIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(@) Finance costs

Interest expense on
— Bank loans for IPO financing

6 PBRFIBEDREF

BRI M EFRR T FI&IR -

B R A

AN BIAN BRI
—BRARBERE L

RITER 22,741 3,362
— Other bank loans and overdrafts —HMBRITERRES 141,550 54,629
— Loans from related companies —REBEQFTER 2,689 8
166,980 57,999
(b) Staff costs BIMK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREYET 96,841 94,343
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 38,295 11,614
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund BFESHR 3,801 3,731
138,937 109,688
(c) Other operating expenses Hib & x
Advertising and promotion expenses BENEERY 8,739 7,643
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN B & 1,619 1,591
Commission, handling and KL FEBR
settlement expenses EEER 77,662 54,792
Information and communication B R
expenses 32,619 31,426
Legal and professional fees FEREREXER 3,486 6,021
Operating lease payments — ERONR—ERS
property rentals 60,516 59,282
Rates and building management fees EMREFERE 4,522 4,686
Miscellaneous expenses FIEF S 40,661 31,537
229,824 196,978
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(BEHEAN - UBTHIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #HE62HEWHFRZAER

122

comprehensive income represents:

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REZHEWER2HIEE -

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year
Under/(Over)-provision in respect of

BNSABIE — ERFEHR

FREE 85,876 41,728
BEFENE, (BB EE

prior years 320 (687)
86,196 41,041

Deferred tax ELEBR
Origination and reversal of temporary iy 2 RE 2 R K

differences (note 25(b)(i)) (H1zE250)0)) (1,703) 1,638
Total tax charge for the year FRTRIBS HARTE 84,493 42,679
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended HE-Z—N\FZA=Z+—HLFEZ
31 March 2018 is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of EENEREBERF NG ERTUE A
the estimated assessable profits for the year, taking into 16.5%(ZZF—+tF : 16.5% )5t & W
account a reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR B REAFNITRERNAR 22—t
Government of 75% of the tax payable for the year of E-)\FRUFERTE—EXBERE
assessment 2017-18 subject to a maximum reduction of NEEIEE75% » BA30,0007T A LR (==
$30,000 for each business (2017: a maximum reduction of —-£4F ¢ BA20,0007T A& R Z ERE R
$20,000 was granted for the year of assessment 2016-17 ZE-RE—LFRBFERL - YE
and was taken into account in calculating the provision for FFAZS—LFZEE) -

2017).
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(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HZ&42HEWERZAER 2
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) %i@ﬁﬁ REAEHERESS
profit at applicable tax rates: AR

Profit before taxation BT AT ) 600,592 314,589
Notional tax on profit before taxation, B16.5%(=ZF—+4F

calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5T H 2 BR TR

WA ZERIE 99,098 51,907

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S 2 s & 933 57
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue ARG « IR 2 (11,978) (8,430)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERABRATIAEEZ

recognised M2 106 -
Utilisation of tax loss carried forward B 48 2 THIAE TR = (%)
Under/(Qver) provision in respect of BEFETR/(BF)

prior years B 320 (687)
Others Hith (3,986) (163)
Total tax charge for the year FRFRIAS H AT 84,493 42,679
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 ESME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) 2B BCRAMEDE383()IE ML AT (HEE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EEFREBRRADE2HFIFEREC EEWSE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of mr

Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund
- 171
£ ¥k ENEH MERAL RS HEK
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T Tr Tr
Yip Mow Lum £ - 6,965 762 2 7,729
Hui Yik Bun FEW - 1,950 2,422 18 4,390
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BRoK - 860 230 18 1,108
Yu Yun Kong REM 220 - - - 220
Szeto Wai Sun BITEHEH 191 - - - 191
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & Bl 161 - - - 161
Total st 572 9,775 3,414 38 13,799
2017
ZEtE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
and benefits Discretionary Provident
Directors’ fees bonuses
EEL ¥ Mg
$§000 $000
S S
Yip Mow Lum 5 - 6,582 - 18 6,600
Hui Yik Bun el - 1380 284 18 1682
Chan Kai Fung (resigned on 31 May 2016) BRER-5—F - 330 - 3 333
RAZT-REH)
Kwok Sze Chi resigned on 28 February 2017)  BER(RZZ—+F - 1,925 426 17 2,368
ZAZT\REH)
Chan Wing Shing, Wison BkH - 816 187 18 o7t
Yu Yun Kong e 210 - - - 210
Szeto Wai Sun A 181 - - - 181
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph ABE 154 - - - 154
Total &t 545 11,083 847 74 12,499
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EEMEw
No director received any emoluments from the Group as an BEESE AEBRWEUEAEE - EAINE
inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation for loss B AER s RS ABRAEE  TEES
of office and, no director waived or has agreed to waive any BELXREREEAME -
emoluments.

9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 9 EBSHMAZL

EMOLUMENTS

Included in the emoluments of the five individuals with the hEFMEeMEEFBEEMRU(ZE—+
highest emoluments were the emoluments of 2 (2017: 3) F:ZA)EE - EEMEER EXXHIFESE
Directors. The emoluments of Directors have been disclosed in BRI =B (ZE—+F : MB) AT 2B
note 8 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of SHEFEINT

the other 3 (2017: 2) individuals are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 3,199 2,804
Discretionary bonuses BETEAT 1,410 278
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund BESHN 54 33

4,663 3,115
The emoluments of the 3 (2017: 2) individuals with the highest ZoH(ZE—EF WA EaTMALZ
emoluments are with in the following bands: BN AT EE :

Numbers of individuals

AE
2018 2017

—B-\F T +tF
Nil to $1,000,000 £ Z%1,000,0007T - -
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017t21,500,0007C 1 1
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,0007T 2 1
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as REBFE N ERZEA TS EMEE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ERMBAREBE NN INARZ e IEAH
compensation for loss of office during the financial year (2017: BAE(CE—tF &) -
Nil).
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10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Htt2mEkzs
Reclassification adjustments relating to components of Hit2HWREREH I EAE

the other comprehensive income

Available-for-sale securities: AEE RS
Changes in fair value recognised AEZFEHERANFENE
during the year 13,977 18,233
Reclassification adjustments for AN SEEEN
amounts transferred to profit or loss: DEEFEE -
— gain on disposal — HERAWES (11,371) (31,794)
Net movement in investment revaluation AREEEHMZEEER
reserve during the year recognised R EBERBEFEH
in other comprehensive income 2,606 (13,561)
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF
Basic earnings per share BREXRRZF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for TR EARBFZ A Zlf FEARRRHESB AEG
the year attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted i AR CASE B B 1T E AR &Y N4 A BGT
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. Ho

Earnings ZF|
Profit for the year attributable to VNG EWIN/NETE =N

owners of the Company ($°000) FEfRaFI(For) 516,099 271,910
Number of shares 8k ]
Weighted average number of EEITERRY

ordinary shares in issue (in thousands) e (FAL) 1,697,153 1,696,878
Basic earnings per share (cents) BRREARZEF (1) 30.41 16.02
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 11 BREF @
Diluted earnings per share BREEERF
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the FREERFEBRREGHRAEEEEEL Y
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to B LR BEITLBRIIEFESEEE -

assume conversion of all dilutive ordinary shares.

Earnings &7
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RERRRBHEEA

the Company ($'000) FEE &M (For) 516,099 271,910
Number of shares g G|
Weighted average number of ordinary BRITERRO T A2

shares in issue (in thousands) (FA) 1,697,153 1,696,878
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: HWEHETEBER o2

— Share options (in thousands) (Note) —BERE(F7)(H7) = 165
Weighted average number of ordinary AT HEFRES RN 2

shares in issue for the purpose of diluted BETEERDN

eamings per share (in thousands) INEEEEE(FAK) 1,697,153 1,697,043
Diluted earnings per share (cents) SRESER T (1)) 30.41 16.02
Note: The computation of diluted earnings per share assumed the exercise of the Wit A EEREERTDEZRAR AN ERLBERER

Company’s outstanding share options with the exercise price lower than the
average market price during the year ended 31 March 2017 and with the
adjustment for the share options lapsed or exercised during the respective
year.
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING

128

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(a)

Securities broking — provision of broking services in
securities traded in Hong Kong and selected overseas
markets, and margin financing services to those broking
clients.

Commodities and futures broking — provision of broking
services in commodities and futures contracts traded in
Hong Kong and overseas markets.

Bullion trading — provision of trading services in bullion
contracts traded in overseas markets.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of unallocated corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include liabilities and accruals attributable
to the activities of the individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is earnings
before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT”). To arrive at EBIT,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
corporate administration costs.

12

7P ER

REBREBHERE D

D2 EPEIRE KR o

AEBRERE R BEMRRAERAKHE
EE{THREEABRIL2HER -2

2T =

ErREDE - MEESHEED

ERLAARRC O A = 73 88 o

(a)

BHFEL - RERBB RTINS
BEZESFRERERE RAZLE PR
FREER -

AmkREEL - RERBEEREEE
S EE 2 Bm MR N2 &R
% o

REER5 - RENEBITHEESRE
RN H IR

TERE BEREE
RABEIBRREREDBEDEE

R AEESRITHREERABKRUTE
EEREXAMEDILEEEE  BEX
afE:

DHMEEBRRMBEBREERARBE
E - MERDBEZ ABIEERSI - DB A

BEREENSE /E@JFTEZEJE&FJ
afE-

RIRES B MEA 2T EFEBREY
B RIRTER 2 B ([EBIT]) - 5
HEBITE » NEBZAFBIWEIETHE
&R E8 2 I8 B (A0ARITEAA) fEH
P
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12 DEHE2)

(b) BHPER

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment information

2018
—E-N\E
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading
Bmk
BHEL HeRgeL BHEERS
$000 $°000 $000
T Tr T
Revenue from customers: KERPZWA
- Brokerage commission —hAE 377,828 158,403 - 536,231
- Dealing income -ZSWA - - 19,086 19,086
- Interest income from margin financing ~ —HEEAT EWA 359,666 392 - 360,058
- Interest income from —BRRHBERE
IPO financing FEUA 29,280 - - 29,280
Reportable segment revenue AREABRA 766,774 158,795 19,086 944,655
Interest income from cash clients RERPHFBUA 33,816 - - 33,816
Other interest income HibFIEMA 46,806 5,409 115 52,330
Handling and settlement fees FEERREEER 75,282 10 2 75,294
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) RS D EREFIEBM 697,509 46,951 18,501 762,961
Amortisation and depreciation for the year 4 R85 R i & (18,224) (102) (39) (18,365)
Finance costs IHBRA (177,531) - - (177,531)
Additions to non-current FRAREZIERE
segment assets during the year NHEE 28,629 39 - 28,668
Reportable segment assets AREDEEE 11,771,698 819,229 75,468 12,666,395
Reportable segment ligbilities ARESHaE (9,553,886) (514,362) (46,927)  (10,115,175)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

130

(b) Segment information (Continued)

12 DEHE2)

(b) DEER(E)

2017
S 3
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking
Em&
HEE
$000
T
Revenue from customers: REEPZHA -
- Brokerage commission —#efe 216,453 145,241 - 361,694
- Dealing income -RHMA - - 14,071 14,071
- Interest income from margin financing ~ —HEEEF 2 WA 181,772 202 - 181,974
- Interest income from - BRRHBERE
IPO financing FBUA 4,879 - - 4,879
Reportable segment revenue AREABRA 403,104 145,443 14,071 562,618
Interest income from cash clients RERPHFBMA 20,798 - - 20,798
Other interest income EmFSUA 26,509 3,903 74 30,486
Handling and settlement fees FEERLEEER 48,603 13 1 48,617
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) A EEFI(EBIT) 305,496 47,065 12,032 364,583
Depreciation for the year FRFE (10,464) (105) (117) (10,686)
Finance costs IHBRA (67,132) (1) - (67,133)
Additions to non-current FRREZIRD
segment assets during the year NHEE 10,001 - - 10,001
Reportable segment assets ARENBEE 8,098,470 733,425 40,7117 8,872,612
Reportable segment liabilities ARENPHaE (6,212,197) (457,480) (25,367)  (6,695,044)
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12 DEHE2)

(c) AHREDHBA - EF - BERE

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

profit, assets and liabilities B2 ¥ iR

Revenue ON

Reportable segment revenue BE &l ON 944,655 562,618
Elimination Eag | (215) (101)
Consolidated revenue RAEUA 944,440 562,517
Profit g

Reportable segment profit (EBIT) AJ3RE 5 2B FIEBIT) 762,961 364,583
Finance costs B TSR AR (166,980) (57,999)
Unallocated corporate income AOBATUA 36,246 17,897
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBERARIFRX (31,635) (9,892)
Consolidated profit before taxation AR AR A 600,592 314,589
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets AIRE DRI EE 12,666,395 8,872,612
Elimination 54 (124,209) (399,879)
Unallocated corporate assets RAOBRAREE 96,918 50,220
Consolidated total assets EBERE 12,639,104 8,522,953
Liabilities aE

Reportable segment liabilities AREDEBE (10,115,175) (6,695,044)
Elimination Y 355,358 374,292
Unallocated corporate liabilities KoL REIBE (242,325) (2,510)
Consolidated total liabilities IrERERE (10,002,142) (6,323,262)
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% > BMERRZE
Leasehold Motor Office Furniture ~ Computers
improvements vehicles  equipment  andfixtures and software
HELE RE  BAZRE  GERKE  ERRRH
$000 $000 $000 $§000 $000
T T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 Aprl 2016 RZE-"EmA-A 45,576 179 16,734 14,933 24,187 101,609
Adaftions e 4528 3,934 27 466 860 10,025
Disposals hrk= (1,092) - (1,443 (2,436) - (@97)
Fxchange adjustments B (10) - {13 - (22 45)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=f=+-H 49,002 4113 16,515 12,963 25,005 106,618
A1 Aprl 2017 RZE-tENA-A 49,002 4,113 15,515 12,963 25,025 106,618
Adoftions B 8,710 354 2422 1,961 2,182 15,629
Disposals k= (5,883) (179) (45) 42 - (6,149)
Exchange adjustments B 18 - 23 - 38 79
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=R=1-H 51,847 4,288 17915 14,882 27,245 116,177
Accumulated depreciation: 2ENE:
At 1 April 2016 RZ2-ENA-A 37783 179 13,281 9,534 17,210 7997
Charge for the year ERER 4426 499 1,389 2,070 2,716 11,100
Writen back on disposals RHERED (1,002) - (1,449 2,400) - (4,935)
Exchange adjustments B 6) - () 1) 8 (20)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=F=1-A 41,061 678 13,222 9,208 19,978 84,142
At1 Aprl 2017 RZE—tEMA-A 41,061 678 13,222 9,208 19,978 84,142
Charge for the year FRER 6,831 804 1,304 2,185 2,301 13515
Written back on disposals MNHERER (5,519) (179) (45) (24 - (5,767)
Exchange adjustments B 18 - 14 - 2% 56
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=t1-H 42,301 1,303 14,585 11,364 22,303 91,946
Net book value: HEFE:
At 31 March 2018 RZB-NE=A=1-H 9,456 2,985 3,330 3,518 4,942 24,231
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t5=A=1-H 7941 3435 2293 3,760 5,047 2476

132 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Notes to the Financial Statements
P E e N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEEE
Debentures
&3
$°000
T
Cost: RS
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMWA—H -
Addition RE 13,120
At 31 March 2018 W=—B—NE=A=+—8 13,120
Accumulated amortisation: RIEE -
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMA—H -
Chargefortheyear ~  FMRx 5253
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE—N\E=A=+-—H 5,253
Net book value: BRTEFE -
At 31 March 2018 W=—8B—NE=A=+-—8 7,867
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H -
15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES 15 AIHEHERS

At fair value: WNFAE
Listed equity securities LTRARES
—in Hong Kong — &5 61,809 7,018
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16 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16 HitERBEE

Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEMZ AT
clearing houses 110,422 71,900
17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 17 FEUERFX

Accounts receivable FEUAR X
— Cash clients -ReEF 427,229 273,879
— Margin clients —HREP 10,327,197 6,068,589
— Clearing houses — 922,901 562,068
— Subscriptions of new shares in IPO —RERAREERREINR - 683,597
— Brokers and dealers — RN 5E 208,530 200,550
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (331) (331)
11,885,526 7,788,352
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDT
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash RBERRZERReEFPERRIREE
clients based on the settlement date as of the end of the BZBRERDITIAT ¢

reporting period is as follows:

Current BIER 155,537 45,056
Less than 1 month LRE A 178,989 88,980
1 to 3 months 123{EA 64,111 89,310
More than 3 months ZFA31E A 28,592 50,533
271,692 228,823
427,229 273,879
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17 FEWERF (&)
(a) BREEDT ()

17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (C()n[['nugd)

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. These receivables are secured by their portfolios
of securities. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed in the Group’s credit policy before execution
of any purchase transactions. At 31 March 2018, the
total market value of their portfolios of securities was
$2,370,271,000 (2017: $1,503,123,000). Based on past
experience and current assessment, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are considered fully
recoverable.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities collateral
to the Group in order to obtain credit facilities for securities
trading. The amount of credit facilities granted to them is
determined by the discounted value of securities accepted
by the Group. At 31 March 2018, margin loans due from
margin clients were current and repayable on demand
except for $348,000 (2017: $710,000) where the margin
loans were past due. $21,000 (2017: $6,000) were past
due for less than 1 month. Nil (2017: $5,000) were past
due for 1 to 3 months. $4,000 (2017: Nil) were past due
for 3 months to 1 year. $323,000 (2017: $699,000) were
past due for over 1 year following the trading suspension
of the pledged securities. At 31 March 2018, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the loans to borrowing margin clients and all margin
clients were $20,528,747,000 and $25,876,765,000
respectively (2017 : $12,957,225,000 and $17,145,627,000
respectively). Margin loans that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 17 FEWERRR(#)
(a) Ageing analysis (Continued) (a) BREBDM(E)

For accounts receivable relating to subscriptions of new TRBE RN AFEETR Z ERERR
shares in IPO, no ageing analysis of subscriptions of new ERULIEER 2 IHE - BRI ES
shares in IPO is disclosed as the ageing analysis does not REBIMBE - MU EFBRTAREEX
give additional value in view of the nature of this business. NEABEEFRMG BRI DT -
Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and EUWEERT » K0 MRG0 2R AR
dealers are current. These represent (1) pending trades B BERFKENEEESFEB2F
arising from the business of dealing in securities, which are HEEERS —MBNRXHBEEERA
normally due within a few days after the trade date and R EERERBFEANEBR 2
(2) margin deposits arising from the business of dealing in RIRE®
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(b)

futures and options contracts.

Impairment of accounts receivable (b) EWERFRE

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are FEW AR 2 R EE R A B R AR ACAR - 1
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is NE B (S W E RIER AT s 1 D RE
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which RN - FERIERT @ BEEEEELEE
case the impairment loss is written off against the accounts UG BR SRHHEY o

receivable directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during RIRBHECFRNEHNT -
the year is as follows:

At 1 April REA—H 331 611
Amounts recovered = dEEA = (280)
At 31 March R=A=+—AH 331 331
At 31 March 2018, the Group’s receivables from a client R_EBE—NF=ZA=+—H8  AEBEZ
of $331,000 (2017: $331,000) arising from trading of FEU— & AR R AR = P 5 TE 331,000 7T
stock option was determined to be impaired. The impaired (ZZ—+% : 331,00070) ERER B E R
receivables related to a client that was in financial difficulty. 1B o BIREFEWER B B IR R 8 2
—EEPAM -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Notes to the Financial Statements
P E e N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 18 HEWTIE - RERFENRK
PREPAYMENTS

Rental and utility deposits HekKkEBKe 18,493 19,182

Prepayments TETEIE 4,867 3,583

Other receivables H At EYGRIA 9,276 8,402
32,636 31,167

Included in the above balances are amounts of $5,289,000 as at 75’\\ —“E-NF=A=+—H" E'Jr A bt

31 March 2018 (2017: $16,948,000) which are expected to be 464 2 FNIA A5,289,000 L ( Z T — 4 ¢

recovered in more than one year. 16,948,000%)?55\%@%5(\ Firm -

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 RERRESEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@ RERREEEYEE

Deposits with banks BITIEK 85,971 159,699
Cash at bank and in hand IRITRFERS 425,916 437,204
511,887 596,903

Cash and cash equivalents RAEMBERREKZ

in the consolidated statement of ReRREEEY

financial position 511,887 596,903
Less: Bank overdraft W RITEX = (434,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REReRERZ

consolidated cash flow statement ReRIESEEY 511,887 162,903
The Group maintains segregated accounts with authorised REBRRURBRBEBLER
institutions to hold client money in the normal course of BEBBAREFRERFESD -
business.
At 31 March 2018, client money maintained in segregated RZE—NF=ZA=1T—H HFERSE
accounts not otherwise dealt with in the financial VERPBEWENIBmEE M EIE
statements amounted to $8,410,398,000 (2017: ZEF&E4+ A #£58,410,398,00070 (=
$6,809,878,000). LT —+14F : 6,809,878,0007T) °
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

138

m:

19 RERFRLSZEEY 2

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash used (b) BRBARAELEEKTAREZ
i HER -

Profit before taxation B F B 600,592 314,589
Adjustments for: FRA T R IEE L R
Amortisation and depreciation BENITE 18,768 11,100
Finance costs EURTIDWIN 166,980 57,999
Dividend income g SHA (232) (1,599)
Interest income (excluding interest MBWATEREFRAE R

income from margin and IPO financings) BRAREERE

FEWA) (86,167) (51,307)

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss GNE (Yezk) 1B 1E (34,065) 12,351
Loss on disposals of property, HEYE  BERREY

plant and equipment E518 378 36
Net gain arising from disposal of HEMHEERRFZ

available-for-sale securities F R (11,371) (31,794)
Net gain arising from disposal of LEESIRE 2 F W

held for trading investment (2,338) (8,092
Net unrealised loss on held for BIEEERE

trading investment ZAREIEEE 420 -
Changes in working capital: EBESEH:
Increase in other HMIERBNEEL N

non-current assets (38,522) (47,009)
Increase in accounts receivable FE W BRE FRIZ AN (4,073,042) (2,868,891)
Increase in other receivables, HibEWHIE - ek

deposits and prepayments TE R IE I AN (1,465) (6,828)
Increase in accounts payable FERTBRZRIE AN 518,783 158,565
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued expenses FEEH RIS N EoAth FE A~ 50IE

and other payables 20 ORd>) 36,031 (6,168)
Cash used in operations CEEEFTRRS (2,905,250) (2,467,048)
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19 RERBELEEYW»)

(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) HRETHELANABEZHIER
activity:
Bank loans
RITER
$°000
F7T
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFmMA—H 4,662,000
Changes from financing cash flows: BB RENIR SR
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFRFTSHRIA 3,490,731
Other borrowing cost paid BT E A AR (164,291)
Total changes in financing cash flows METEIR SR EBa%E 3,326,440
Exchange adjustments [ R G 22 13,154
Interest expenses B E 164,291
At 31 March 2018 R-B-NE=A=+—H 8,165,885
20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 AMB AR 2RE
At 31 March 2018, the Company had direct or indirect interests RZZB-NF=ZA=+—H8 KRRRUT
in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private companies, WEAREEEENEEED  ZSWEAR
particulars of which are set out below: A ARARNE  FHBWT
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER HMRIH R A BERTRHERE R A#R TERH
Direct Indirect
Ei 5t
Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$100 100% - Investment holding
BT REERERAT 22 Qctober 2009 100%7T REER
EBREES/
“ETNFTAZTZH
Choice Max Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
2 April 2014 1% RESR
EBREES/
“E-mEMAZH
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Coninued) 20 RB AR 2RE ()

Attributable
equity interest

e

Place and date of
incorporation

AEMER 3 B A

Issued and fully
Name of company paid-up capital

PG

Principal activities

IERH

ERTRARRE

Marick Investments Limited

Bright Smart Asset Management Limited
BT REERERAA

Bright Smart Easy Finance Company Limited
B SiEHBEERAR

Bright Smart Finance Channel
Management Limited
B BERERERAT

Bright Smart Finance Online Channel Limited

B8 LERARLT

Bright Smart Forex Limited
BT ERNEERAT

British Virgin Islands (BVI)/
15 April 2014

EERIES/
—Z-NFNATHRA

Hong Kong/
18 August 2011
B/
Z2——E/\A+/\A

Hong Kong/
6 March 2014
74
“Z-EF=AAA

Hong Kong/
22 May 2014

B/
“E-mFRAZTZH

Hong Kong/
22 May 2014

B8/
“E-mFRAZTZH

Hong Kong/
23 April 2012

B8/
—E-—EWNAZt=H

US$1
S

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/7C

HK$1
187

HK$1
187

HK$1
187

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7T

Direct

E#

100%

Indirect

[}

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding
RESR

Asset management
services

BEEERE

Inactive
FIE 4

Administrative services

1Bk

Production and broadcast
finance programs

RIEREEMESE

Forex trading service
MNER H IR
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20 RfB AR ZRE &)

20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER HMRLEBR A BRIRARKRE EltRAER TEXH
Direct Indirect
B 5t
Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd Hong Kong/ HK$114,000,000 - 100%  Futures and
BT HEREmBRAT 14 November 1995 114,000,000 7T commodities broking
B/ HEREREL
—ANEE+T—-A+EE
Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 - 100%  Bullion dealing and
BIBREEBRAF 10 October 2012 10,0007T provision of bullion
&5/ trading service to
ZE-CETATH customer
BEeEERRE,RE
RERHRE
Bright Smart Investment Consultancy (China) Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited 9 November 2010 1T REER
B R &R (PR BRAT .74
ZE-Z¥T-ANA
Bright Smart Promotion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
B HERRAR 25 August 2015 1% TBRH
B8/
ZE-h¥/\AZThA
Bright Smart Property Management Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
RANEERERAA 31 March 2014 1% TBRH
B8/
“E-EF=R=+-H
Bright Smart Property Management Service Limited  Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BT NEEREHAROA 22 August 2017 17 (R
.74
“E—+E\AZtZH
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

Name of company

PG

Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited

BT ESER(EHREROA

Charm Capital Limited
BEARAA

Everlasting Source Limited
BYERRA]

Glow Dragon Limited
EEARAE

Huge Dynasty Limited
REARAA

Ideal Magic Limited
HERRAR

Merit Act Limited
ERBRAT

142

Place and date of
incorporation

AEMER 3 B A

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
BRIRARRE

Hong Kong/ HKS$1,141,000,000
10 August 1998 1,141,000,0007%7C
574
—“MWANENATE
Hong Kong/ HK$1
18 February 2016 BT
B8/
ZE-"FZRAT/\R
Hong Kong/ HK$1
8 December 2010 187
B8/
ZE-ZEF-ANA
Hong Kong/ HK$1
21 January 2010 13T
B8/
ZZ-TE-A-t-H
Hong Kong/ HK$1
13 January 2010 13T
B8/
“Z-TE-fAt=H
Hong Kong/ HK$1
13 January 2010 13T
574
“Z-TE-At=H
Hong Kong/ HK$1
3 November 2009 AT
574
“ZZNE-A=R

Attributable
equity interest
LR AR
Direct Indirect
HE i
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

20 RMMB AR Z2BRE %)

Principal activities

IERH

Securities broking and
margin financing

ERRLRITRRE

Administrative services

1Bk

Administrative services

1Bk

Administrative services

1B

Administrative services

1B

Administrative services

1Bk

Administrative services

1Bk
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 RB AR Z2RE ()

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER HMRLEBR A BETREERE EltRAER TEXH
Direct Indirect
B 5t
Rainbow Town Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
MEARAR 8 October 2015 1% TBRH
574
—“Z-1%+ANA
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
ERERRA 21 January 2010 AT B
5/
“2-BE-f-+-H
BT RERHRY)ERAR People’s Repuboi o HK81,600,000 - 100% e
(Note)(f1s#) China/ 1,600,000/ ¢ i
10 January 2011
PEARLTE/
—§-—#-A+H
Note: It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the Mz B R BITIRE R E AR KBRS M AN
People’s Republic of China. BERE -
21 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21 AR

Accounts payable FERTHRER
— Cash clients —HHeRF 293,611 297,693
- Margin clients —HREP 1,181,767 756,406
— Clearing houses —sEEFT 178,606 87,075
— Brokers — & 51,141 33,022
1,705,125 1,174,196
All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within FERMERTERAR —FREENEBREREX
one year or are repayable on demand. EiE -
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22 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 22 FEstEXREMENSTE
PAYABLES

23

144

Commission rebate payable e & [0l B 36,672 23,441
Accrued bonuses FEFTIEAL 14,146 2,843

Stamp duty, trading levy and trading FEENIER - K ZHBER
fee payables RHE 11,262 6,927
Receipt in advance TEUWGRIA 717 969
Other payables H S ERIE 23,381 15,929
86,178 50,109

All accrued expenses and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year.

%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ’é#ﬁﬂi'iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ RIS — 4
NEZERERREA -

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 23 SRITERKRBITEX

Secured loans BEBER

- Bank loans —RITER 7,924,885 3,737,000

- Bank overdraft —RITEX - 434,000

— Bank loans for IPO —ERXARBEERITER - 675,000

Unsecured loans EIIRE

- Bank loans —IRITER 241,000 250,000
8,165,885 5,096,000

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and classified as
current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair value.

The bank loans as at 31 March 2018 are interest-bearing.
Securities collateral deposited by the Group’s margin clients
was re-pledged to banks to secure loan facilities. Such banking
facilities were utilised to the extent of $7,924,885,000 (2017:
$4,846,000,000). The fair value of the collateral re-pledged to
banks as at 31 March 2018 amounted to $14,123,507,000
(2017: $7,909,095,000).

FrASRTERAN—FRNEE \*EZ%/AL@J
aft - RITERECEEEREEATERS

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—B2RITEFKHE
%J% CAEEZHBREFMBEEZES
B RBEFTET  UWEESERRE -
BRI E DB 7,924,885,000T( =
—+4F : 4,846,000,0007T) e R T — )\
“A=+—8 BEATFROZEHERAF
HA #*514,123,507,000 T ( Z B —+ 4 :
7,909,095,0007T,) ©
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24

25

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS -
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and
not previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000
(2017: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

24

25

’E

RKERN — EFEHAFRIKET

ol

AEBRFEFERIELERFTERE AR
BEABRRBIROINFDEAERIERRAENR
E%ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬁ%‘ﬁ%l‘%ZEEﬁ&i?ﬁ%ﬂ’I‘EE’A
REEI([RERE]) - BESFE/TE
BHRIRAE - BBIEEATE - RIE
BETAE BEIRHEREEREEREEMN
FA A 2 6% AT EIfE L #aR - HELAE AHER
Y A80,0007T (= F —+4F : 30,0007T) & £
o FHEIHREIRS 3R -

e MBIRR R ZFER

(a) FEPBRRRZEHHRIELE :

FRARBHE

Provision for Hong Kong Profits

SHE R

Tax expense for the year 85,876 41,728
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT FIEH (42,157) (41,624)
43,719 104
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFERBNEBER
relating to prior year 79 3
43,798 107
Represented by: LTRHEERRE :
Current taxation BIHARR IR 44,495 2,863
Tax recoverable AR [EFIE (697) (2,756)
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 ZEBBMRRARZABH 2
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: b)) BELEHEEERAEE
The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) RizaMBRARERZELEHRAR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial &/ (BE)EKID RFENEEHIT -

position and the movements during the year are as follows:

Differences

between

depreciation

allowance and

Accrued the related

bonuses depreciation
mEEER

[ESHTEAL MR ECER
$000 $000
T T

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) MUTREEEZ

arising from: ELEHEERE(BE) -
At 1 April 2016 W-B—AEMA—H (2,089) (1,836) (3,925)
Charged to consolidated statement of A 2 E SR 1+

comprehensive income (note 7/(a)) (B1:#7(3) 1,632 6 1,638
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=RA=+—H (457) (1,830) (2,287)

Differences

between

depreciation

allowance and

Accrued the related

bonuses depreciation
ERERE

FEEtEAl MBHEZER
$°000 $000
T T

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) MUTREEEZ
arising from: ELEHEEE(BE):

At 1 April 2017 R-E—+EmA—H (457) (1,830) (2,287)
(Credited)/Charged to consolidated Riga2mEWEEGEA),/

statement of comprehensive income S+ (#7:£ 7))

(note 7(a)) (1,875) 172 (1,703)

At 31 March 2018 RZZE-\F=A=1+—H (2,332) (1,658) (3,990)
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 ZE8HBRRRZAER 2
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b)(ii)Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (b)) R ERE B AR R R Z B BR
financial position

Net deferred tax asset recognised in BERERE AR

the consolidated statement of R EERIEEEFE

financial position (4,029) (2,381)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ERERE IR R F

the consolidated statement of R ZELERBEEFE

financial position 39 94

(3,990) (2,287)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 BEX - REBERBRE
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) BERART D 2EE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBFAERSHERIH EVEEAR
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set EHREHRIHNGERRERHE - AR
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BB ERE S AR BB D A AN 2 BA ) K2 HA
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of REZBBFIFEHIN AT -
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ¥ N/NET|

Share
Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits

BA  BHnE BERERE KRB
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T

At 1 April 2016 RIZE-XFMA—H 508,966 737,216 11,104 35,664 1,292,950

Profit and total comprehensive £ R R 2 E Iz

income for the year BE - - - 103,825 108,825
Dividend paid during the year FRIRTRE - - - (96,715) (96,715)
Shares issued under share BT EIE T 8T

option scheme ] 133 461 (73) - 521
Transfer of share option reserve  E UK B R 14 85 e ¢

upon the forfeiture of ERERE

share options - - (2,690) 2,690 -
At 31 March 2017 R=Z—+tF

=A=t+-—H 509,099 737,677 8,341 45,464 1,300,581
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 &% - ERKRE &)

148

(Continued)

(a) Movement in components of equity (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

(a) BHAMBD 2BE (&)

ARTF) ()

Share
Share Share option  Retained Total
capital premium reserve profits equity
BE  RHRE BRERE AHER st
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Fr T Tt T Fr
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZB—tFENA—H 509,099 737,677 8,341 45,464 1,300,581
Profit and total comprehensive G REFI K 2 HI R
income for the year ko] - - - 86,206 86,206
Dividend paid during the year FRRNEE - = = (81,456) (81,456)
Shares issued under share BRETEIET RS
option scheme B&n 90 343 (46) - 387
Transfer of share option reserve SR Ut AR IE 14 &Y
upon the forfeiture of BRERE
share options - - (896) 896 -
At 31 March 2018 R=B-N\%F
=A=+-H 509,189 738,020 7,399 51,110 1,305,718
(b) Dividends (b) BE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Group attributable to the year

Dividends declared in respect of the current year are as

follows:

() FAEERDZRREGRFERYR
5

AEFEERKREMT

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period of 9.1

cents per ordinary share (2017:
4.8 cents per ordinary share)
(2018: 1,697,296,308 shares,
2017: 1,696,996,308 shares)

MERRREZ RS

I B RE A%, 11l
(ZZ—+%F : sRER
4.8IN(ZFE—NEF :
1,697,296,308M%
—T—tF:
1,696,996,3080% )

154,454 81,456
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 ¥4 > ##ERKRE &)

(Continued)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) BE#)
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () AEEEZBRREGMRNFEEMSR

Group attributable to the year (Continued) B(#&)
The final dividend proposed after the end of the BRI E R A BAFIRE
reporting period is subject to approval of the RARREERRBFRE i
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general BAAEE - BIWENIRE ERE
meeting of the Company and has not been recognised RERE-

as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) TEEEZBRFREMLE-—FBREE
Group attributable to the previous financial year, ZEMRKRE (ERCHERIRN) -

approved and paid during the year:

Final dividend in respect of previous E—UEREE 2 KBRS
financial year, approved and paid FREEER4.8(L(F A
during the year, of 4.8 cents per EHOERIRT) (ZF
ordinary share (2017: 5.7 cents per —tF  GRL B
ordinary share) (2018: 1,696,996,308 57 (ZF—NF -
shares, 2017: 1,696,776,308 shares) 1,696,996,308% -
ZE—t+F
1,696,776,308/%) 81,456 96,715
(c) Share capital () B=X

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
No. of shares Nominal value No. of shares Nominal valug

RAEE HE R inEE HE
$000 $'000
T Tt

Authorised ordinary shares of  SRE{E0.307TH

$0.30 each: FEESBR

At 1 Apri/31 March HmA—-R/
=A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000,000 3,000,000

Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 April RIEA—H 1,696,996,308 509,099  1,696,554,538 508,966
Shares issued under share REBRE BT

option scheme f&n 300,000 90 441,770 133
At 31 March R=A=1+—8 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,696,996,308 509,099
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

150

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued under the share option scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2018, share options were
exercised to subscribe for 300,000 ordinary shares (2017:
441,770 ordinary shares) in the Company at a consideration
of $387,000 (2017: $521,000), of which $90,000 (2017:
$133,000) was credited to share capital and the balance of
$343,000 (2017: $461,000) was credited to share premium
account, which included a balance of $46,000 (2017:
$73,000) that has been transferred from the share option
reserve.

(@) Shares issued under the share option scheme during
the year are summarised as follows:

New shares issued due to exercise

BE-E-\E=A=1-H

26 EX - ERKRE %)

() BA4)

Number of
share
options
exercised

BT
BREHA

Consideration

BARBAEARBUBRIREIRZEE
REBRARRARNEHRERBMN K —
R RARBHKBTEEMS - AEERE
B Z A RFHAL -

RIBEBRETERTZRG
REBEE-_Z-—N\E=ZA=+—HItF
& - 1T{EREAR RS 2N A §]300,000% &
BT —+F - 441, 7700 BAY) -
(8 A387,0007T(ZF—+4F : 521,000
o) HF Q0,000 (=T —tF :
133,0007T ) 5| BRE A + 1M 45 #: 343,000
TL(ZZF—+4 : 461,00070) 5| AR %
EBER - B eIEA#46,000L(ZF—+
F 1 73,0007T) B R EE IR R A B o

(@ FARBRESTEIET D ZHITRMHE
ggn R

Share
option
reserve

Share CET
capital  premium

RE BE  ROEE BRERE
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Fr Fr i

of share options for the year ended |- FER{TERRE

31 March 2018 mEfT ARG 300,000 387 90 343 (46)
New shares issued due to exercise of HE-T—+F=R=T-H

share options for the year ended IFERRTEERERET

31 March 2017 kil 441,770 521 133 461 (79)
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Shares issued under the share option scheme
(Continued)

()

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
the end of the reporting period

Exercise period

{7

27 October 2014 to 26 October 2017

26 EX > RERKRE &)

() BA&#)

REBBRESBIBT RN (E)

(b)

Exercise price

1@

“3-mETAZTLAE

PR B R ) R i B e RATHE 2
FBREHR

2018
—8-N\f
Number of

share options
ERENE

2017
“T—tF
Number of
share options
BRESA

“E—+F+A-TRH $1.29 - 320,000

23 June 2015 o 22 June 2018 “E-RFN A-t=RHZE
—Z-\E~A-+-H $3.85 7,710,000 8,640,000
7,710,000 8,960,000

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve

U]

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations as well as the
effective portion of any foreign exchange differences
arising from hedges of the net investment in these
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2(q).

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H

d) HEHERBDN

V)

(ii)

RADIGRE

REREHERFE  ARALZK
0 (B A BIE N IR T AR
2RSS - HERBER S T R
SR AR B - AR BMLAIE
BEEKBREDENEIEETS -

B 5
ERFEEEMAELEBRERI
EBZMBHRRZELZEIAY
UL FBINERFIRE 2 B MER
EZRWE - BRREE ST RED
IERPEE2(q) °
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

152

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2(g)(ii).

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of Bright Smart Futures
& Commodities Co., Ltd, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited and Merit Act Limited
through Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited
from their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired as a result of the restructuring
exercise and the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange thereof is treated
as an equity movement and recorded in “Merger
reserve”.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of the actual number of unexercised share options
granted under the share option scheme recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in note 2(mj(iii).

26 EX - ERKRE %)

d) FEMEREWNE)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

BEE
BABEEROETHHEESR
Rz AT EL R FE
HER I H B T M RE2(0) ()8
e

EOHEE
RZE—ZEFA=Z+NB AR
RIS BRI EERER AR AR
THELRERERAR « BT &S
B(EB)ERARMEEBRA
A2 EREWEZEARZED
BEITIRA - REAEBHIKE
MIE AR 2 AT EEARD FET
ZBRAHBEBEARE) ME X5
RIEEREEERIE - Wik El &
BHREEIA -

BB

FE RS R R FEARIR MY SE2(m) (i) Y
PARR D A R 2 SRR 2 B RTIK
REERIRIBE BT EIR T 2 RTT
ERREERESE 2 FE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Notes to the Financial Statements
SR ey

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEBES - BTTIIR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 &7 - #ERKRE#)

(Continued)

d) FEEEERBENE)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(vi) Distributability of reserve
The reserves of the Company are distributable to
the equity shareholders subject to the provisions
of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $789,130,000 (2017: $783,141,000).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) are obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”)
at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and make adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each of
them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to support
the level of activities with sufficient buffer to accommodate
for increases in liquidity requirements arising from potential
increases in the level of business activities. During the
financial year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with
the liquid capital requirements under the FRR.

RABSEREMABLAF | =T L/ —/\FFH

(vi) DIKGEE
RIBA R R Z BEERRAH M AR
&> - WA BEREEH D IKEARF]
AEER—RAEXBBES IS
B AR T - NAF A AR
Rkl

RNRZE—N\FE=A=+—8 - fq#t
DIRTFARBESRER 2 HiEAS
%8/5789,130,0007C( —E—+ 4 :
783,141,0007T) °

(e) EXER

FAEEEREAZEZARARESS
BRELE 2/ - BBRERRKF
FYEE i N AR TS 5E B DA KA & BR R AR ER 15
BME - BERERRTRLO RN AHME
mEFAANGRME o pH - BESF L
EEBEFRZES([EEE )R %R
ZAREEE T B QB AR R
BEFLHAE (MBER) R (THHE
BRADBATZEERDESHRE °

AEBEEGR N E MR REREERES
B ARREHEERSEEKRFZRER
BR[O ¥R B AR 42 B ANAR N 5 SR 2 4 B L AR
B HEGFE  YREKEHARREZE
HHEREBIELAE - REHB L
AIME - NEBEERS B QRIS RE
B2BEAE  RUAXRERRLE AU
RAEZEH R P e B BIAZK M 5 BUER
HESrHREARIEERGED - R
BRFE - EFRENEB AR ETH
BERBAETN 2 RBESHTE °
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 EBEZEURGODAER 2FE
PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted RARRA —HEBRESE R —ZTF
on 4 August 2010 by a resolution of the board of directors of the NANBBEARRESSBIBRZEZRE
Company whereby the employee, consultants, contractors and AREBREE - BRE  AERpk=EEaEE2H
directors of the Group are entitled to the share option scheme. BEACHE=TE - BMEVERES EEB ISR
The options granted have no vesting condition and are then AR=FHANITE - SNBIRIER THEA
exercisable within a period of three years. Each option gives FERNZREE — IR AN AT E @K -
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company.
(a) The number and weighted average exercise prices (a) BRESBERMEFGTEED
of share options are as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\§ S 3
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number of average
of share exercise share exercise
options price options price
I AT
BREHE THEE  BREHA I
Outstanding at the beginning of the year — F ) AT TE 8,960,000 3.76 12,222,840 3.68
Exercised during the year ERITIE (300,000) 1.29 (441,770) 1.18
Lapsed during the year FREM (950,000) 380  (2,821,070) 3.83
Outstanding at the end of the year FREARITE 7,710,000 3.85 8,960,000 3.76
Exercisable at the end of the year FERATIT6E 7,710,000 3.85 8,960,000 3.76
No share option was granted during the year (2017: Nil). FAMERDEBRE(ZS—tF &) -
The options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had a weighted RZE-—NFZAZ+—HERTEZER
average exercise price of $3.85 (2017: $3.76) and a EIEFHITFEEARSSSIL(ZE—EF ¢
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 months 3.767T) © MANHEFAMRTEIAFE R21ME A
(2017: 14 months). ZE—tF A4MER) -

154 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2017/18



Notes to the Financial Statements
P E e N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B - LABITTIIR)

27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on the Black-
Scholes model. The contractual life of the share option
is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the Black-Scholes model.

Date of grant

A

Fair value at measurement date REtEHEZ ATE
Share price BE

Exercise price ITIE(E

Expected volatility TEHE IR

Option life BB % 2 5 S AR
Expected dividends yield TEEANR B K

Risk-free interest rate 47 3 B ) 2

2] EREEURDAER 2FIE 2)

(b) BREAFERRBR

1R HR th B RS 2 1m0 <o T W R 2 AR 7% 2
RHETSRBAR L BEREZ A FEM
At E - TR B 2 fEr A HERA
Bhe -HFRNRAFE - BEREZS
WEERZEAZ —THBAZE - 18
FTEEHE AAB N - FRETEL -

23 June 27 October
2015 2014
—E—RF —EF—UF
NAZ+=R +A=++H
$0.96 $0.15
$3.85 $1.22
$3.85 $1.29
57.27% 36.58%
1.5 year ¢ 1.5 year ¢
2.83% 4.22%
0.22% 0.18%

The expected volatility is derived with reference to the
historic volatilities of the Group based on publicly available
information. Expected dividend vyield is based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under no vesting condition.

There was no market condition associated with the share
option granted.

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H

EERIE Y ER A FARRGZER -
SEREE 2 FELIREMSH o BHK
BRTVAEL RS REN - TRBAK
BEeRR22E  AIEAREQTFEZ
ftiat o

BRAEN R BN Y BB IR - AR
TATR PR 3 S S T 0 A R
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28 COMMITMENTS 28 FRIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2018 not R-ZE—N\EZA=+—BHEABESR
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: IR 2 BAEIEDNT -

Contracted for EHED 4,452 5,086
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE

At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease %:g—}\%iﬁ =t—8 REHE

payments under non-cancellable operating lease on 2 AL A KR T 2 AR R

properties are payable as follows: EFIEATEAR N BEEA

Within one year —FR 55,451 58,837
After one year but within five years —FRERAFA 15,263 54,740

70,714 113,577
The Group leases a number of properties under operating REBRBEEHEOEEZLIEME - &
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one ZHAO—RINF BB —FEMNF - A8
year to four years, with an option to renew the leases when BEVETHAEKRKTUNESE - A
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes TEREXAES -

contingent rentals.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BiERERMEERAFEE
FAIR VALUES

AEBZBERKHELER  RPES -
R SNE R BERRR o T X AL B P
T 2 7% 55 L B 7 62 18 0 T 0k 5 L P
BRENZ M AR B IR BOR R AR -

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and
equity price risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk (a FERMRE

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts AEBZEERRETERAERERS -
due from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The RIOREERZER - BIBEBEIEEE
management has a credit policy in place and the exposure PR - WHHEEEEERR -

to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all clients (including cash and
margin clients). Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed in the Group’s credit policy before execution
of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from cash
clients are due within the settlement period commonly
adopted in the relevant market practices, which is usually
within a few days from the trade date. Because accounts
receivable from cash clients relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default,
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully receivable, and the
prescribed deposit requirements and the short settlement
period involved, the credit risk arising from the amounts
due from cash clients is considered low. The Group
normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits as
collateral for providing financing to its cash and margin
clients. Margin loans due from margin clients are repayable
on demand. For commodities and futures brokerage,
an initial margin is required prior to opening transaction.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities collateral and
margin deposits of each cash account, margin account
and futures account are monitored by the management on
a daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.

BARSEMKRETRAT | — Tt/ —/\FFR

REWNEPRFTE - AP (BHRER
ERAREP)HEZZ EREEE -
RUTEANBERZH - BeFPER
AEEZEEBRRABEFOFR - &
WiR e &P RIETNERTISEN EE
RAZHEERNIE  —RARZHERE
BRAN - ENEEREEPEFS NS
MUY |RACHEZEP - FEEXR
VEEBREHNAREHRPESATEH
Yeml - A E 7R IRE K TS K 4 B
o MR EPERREEZEEME
BEM - ARE-REMNERE LR
BEFBERBES R IR FRIER
MERHEME 2 ER R - BERTREP
ZHEREFARENRER - BiEm MY
ERLEHBME - RARMAXNER
Be ERESEREEMAARER
TRP - FREFPEHERP 2ESFK
HmkRETEEEN  NERE &
EBHRES KBITHR
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

158

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group
normally enters into transactions with brokers and clearing
houses which are registered with regulatory bodies and
enjoy sound reputation in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
and to ensure compliance with FRR. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and funding in the short and
longer term. Except deferred tax liabilities, all of the
Group’s liabilities are expected to be settled within one
year. The carrying amounts of all financial liabilities equal
the contractual undiscounted cash outflow, except for bank
loans of which the contractual undiscounted cash outflow
as at 31 March 2018 amounted to $8,168,252,000 (2017:
$5,096,892,000).

29 BIEAMEER AT EE)

(a)

(b)

EEmMEE)

HAAEE —REC R EERBEMIL
RENEBERFBEZ R MEEME
IR5 - BB REERTZ(E
EEBRER -

HRARERREEPRIHES -
WEBBREHEERR

e

AEEYEEREMEMBER - BLX
SEHHEERR -

REBE S mk

AEBANERLEREETBZHEE
2 BREEENENERRESFE -
YRR AMBERBRA - NEBZHK
RREHEEENRENRDESR
2 WEBTEERE  BERERFEHER
T W S 3R B KB B 5 M A8 7T e AR
BRE  NENRENRBHESEFR -

AEBZHBRATHEE I MFEHR
HELHFE  MERASIZIHERE
CHREENEEHEE - BRELERE
BEN  AEBZEAEEHREN—
FANERMN -FEcRBECEREEY
HEFTORMBRERHERSE &
RREIERITER AR 2T —N\F
ZA=1+—H EBiIOKRMBASRE
H £ /48,168,252,000 L ( — T —+ 4
5,096,892,0007T) °
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BI#EEREERAFEZ)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (¢ F=EEp

(i) Interest rate profile iy F=EEE
The Group charges interest on its margin clients and AEFEZHEESHA S INRE R
cash clients with outstanding loan amounts on the REPRHMARBEEFMNESER
basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-up. Financial WEFE - ¢BMEE(MMITFRER
assets (such as margin loans and deposits with FRTEFER) AR B E(RTE
banks) and financial liabilities (such as bank loans) are FOFERZFHEXRHNE - A5EEH
primarily at floating rates. The Group’s income and WA RKEE S RETEMEE
operating cash flows are not subject to significant AFEREE -
interest rate risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the reporting TRV ANEBRHE BEZ F| =R

date is as follows: 4Ba

Assets BE
Deposits with banks |ITHER 85,971 159,699
Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEETZ
clearing houses EERE 108,071 69,550
Accounts receivable from FEUBR SR
- Margin loans —HEEX 10,327,197 6,068,589
— Cash clients with outstanding loan —MAEEER
amounts WR® P 271,692 228,823
— Subscription of new shares in IPO —RBERAREER
R - 683,597
10,792,931 7,210,258

Liabilities =i
Secured bank loans BEHIRITER 7,924,885 3,737,000
Secured bank overdraft BEMIRITEL - 434,000
Unsecured bank loans IR ITE R 241,000 250,000
IPO bank loans BHRXAREEIRITER - 675,000
8,165,885 5,096,000
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c¢) Interest rate risk (Continued)

() Interest rate profile (Continued)
All the above interest-bearing financial assets are
receivable on demand or within one year.

All the above interest-bearing financial liabilities are
repayable within one year.

(i) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 March 2018, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before taxation would
have increased by approximately $26,270,000 (2017:
$21,143,000).

As at 31 March 2018, if interest rates had been
100 basis point lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before taxation would
have decreased by approximately $25,368,000 (2017:
$20,686,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks, statutory deposits with
exchanges and clearing houses and margin loans
and higher/lower interest expense on bank loans.
Other components of equity would not be significantly
affected by the changes in interest rates.

29 BIEAMEER AT EE)

(c) MEREERE)

0]

(ii)

NEEE(E)
ALt EEMEERAIRER
Y eI —EFRUE -

FRA Last EERABER —FR

BE -

BRE DT
RZE—NF=ZA=+—H  &F
EHMEHESTEZBERLT W
FE FF100EER - BIAEEZ
B 5 AT 1) FE 1 01 4926,270,0007T
ZZ—+4F : 21,143,0007T) °

RZE—NF=ZA=+—H  &F
BEMBHEFTE BT @
FETHEA100EEL - BIAERZ
B 54 B0 8 ) R 4 #9.25,368,0007T
—Z—+4F : 20,686,0007T) °

BR 15 A A48 00, R I B R 0 ER
TER  RGREEREEES
RFRER 2 M BWAIE M, R
RARITE R BRI, R AP
B Rz HERSY TaXH
REHMEEATE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 Bi¥ERERMREERAFEEH2Z)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) A=EmEAMRE)

(c¢) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the reporting dates
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to interest rate risk at the reporting dates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars
(*SGD”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”)
and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”)
is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the
USD as insignificant. In respect of financial instruments
denominated in other currencies, the Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept at an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management monitors
all the foreign currency positions on a daily basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis

The Group’s significant net exposure to RMB, SGD, JPY,
AUD and GBP at the reporting date and the estimated
impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for the year had the
foreign exchange rates of RMB, SGD, JPY, AUD and GBP
changed at that date are illustrated below. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and
the USD would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the USD against other currencies.

BARSEMKRETRAT | — Tt/ —/\FFR

(i) BREDH(E)

R ERRE AT B R AR N R

RBEEHR - AERARER
AEAKEMBERERE B HNAR
HHERBRZEHTA  HAKHE
Z BRB AN A PR B B 228 - 7
rRE — T~ F 2 HREEE
1T°

(d) IMERE

REBPTASZIMNER R T BIRE KT
(IE=x)) - ARB(TARKE]) ~ #0
R (TEmEx])) - BR(TBExT))
BIT(HRIT)) MBS ([ R DFHEZ M
BTA - ANBTTERTTHS - MAE
BRA - BITRXT  FHEXEEE R
B - MARMERHEZMBTAM
5 AKRBEEAFTENER MREHIE
KA L EINEARBIEE 2 T F &
B EARRERFEERAIRYZ
KF - BIRETREEMAINERE -

SN R AR R BRBRE DT
HEREERZARE - KT - A
TC BT RREEERBREE - AEE
REBEEEHRARE - KT - A
TR RRSGARSERRRFE
IREHAEBFAZ GH, (82
BEFFEIIRIT - LM E - ER&K
B TTESETTIE R N g RS TT L H A
EREE AT AEEMIBNEATE
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIEBEERAFEEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

162

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(e)

Net asset
in foreign
currency

WML E
BERE
$000

o

RMB ARE 94,473

36D g 4,911

JPY 7,10

AUD A 4,600

(GBP i 2,887

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
listed equity investments classified as available-for-sale
equity securities (see note 15).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly
for performance against expectations.

d) SERMEZ)

2018 2017
31 3-tf
Effect on Effect on
Appreciation/  profit before Appreciation/  profit before
(depreciation) tax and Netasset  (depreciation) tax and
in foreign retained in foreign in foreign retained
currency profits currency currency profits
AeAE/  RARRE
(BE) ERzzE
$000
T
5 4,724 245,254 5 12,263
4] (4,724) 9] (12,269
5 246 3,068 5 183
(3) (246) 0) (183
5 386 4,944 5 A7
(9) (386) 6) 247)
5 230 4,196 5 210
(3) (230) 0) 10
5 144 - - -
(3) (144) - -
HRESTEBRRINEER 2 BEHEE
AREFRAENRE ARG AEET
BRINERRZEHMIEA - ZBEDI IR
R T —+FAER 2 BT o
(e) RERM

OB ERAES LM
KRE(RME15)ME - AEBEAAXHE
REZSHER -

AEEN ETREDEETEHAX S
£ e AR EAE M EIRE TS
BREBERERE IR TEHER
HRIATRHZ DA
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk (Continued)

The following table shows the approximate change in
the Group’s other components of equity in response
to reasonable change in the value of available-for-sale
securities:

BEEREER AR E®E)

(e) RERMRE)

TRIJIAAHIEERHFEELENE
BEEPHUASERaEMERIDEL
MBS

Effects

on other

components

2018 of equity
Hign

HitB B2

—E-N\E V28
$'000

Effects

on other
components

2017 of equity

Yl

L ARRKED )

—FtF iofZ
$:000

RERERREHNES :

Change in the relevant equity

price risk variable:
Increase 20
Decrease s

% Fr % T

10 6,181 10 702
(10) (6,181) (10) (702)

(f) Fair values measurement

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H

) AFEIE

() BAVEFENESHMEE
RFEER
TREIINBERRIZEEERE
AEYDBERBBMBREENE
185k A HERT BT REN =R L
FEEMR %m$%@%ﬂlﬁﬁ
FE - RHEFENERDEHZ
%MTHE&%E%%AEWT%
RUERERN

o FE—MEE: RERAE AL
MNE( BIEREEXBERET
£ HERKERMIGH AL
BAREBBEFEATE

s F_AMAE:ERAF-_LBA
BE( AURBERF & 58 —ARA AT ER
R AE) BARERETED
AERHAEFERFE T
ARG A ERBEIERTS
BUEmBAE
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued)

29 IR BEERAFYEE)

(H DFEFEE

() Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) () BAVEFENSREEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEERE)
e Level 3 valuation: Fair value measured using o E=-FHE:FRAEE TAH
significant unobservable inputs R AEFEATE
The Group has a finance team performing daily REEBEE -—ZHMBERRERT
valuations for the financial instruments, including listed A(BE LT HEERAES
available-for-sale equity securities and held for trading LEBIEEER&RKRE )G RETH
investments. The team reports directly to the chief B - ZBE EE R FLEELESR -
financial officer.
Fair value measurement as at Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2018 categorised into 31 March 2017 categorised into
RZB-NE=A=1-H
HATEHEAEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
- -t =4 £ £ 2=
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T rn r R R S
Recurring fair value BEMNTETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Avallable-for-sale equity securiies Wi HERAES
- Listed -2 61,809 - - 7018 - -
Liabilties: BfF:
Held for trading investments FEBERRE
- Futures contracts -HER (420) S - . : -
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no HEZZ— \HF=-A=1+—HLHF
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into B - EHF_EzREUEEE
or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise ] EEE - BT = B8 A
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at o REBMBER TN A
the end of the reporting period in which they occur. MMERARER AT ESLARES
BRIz BRI EEE -
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) WHEUAAFEIENEHEERE

164

at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017.

BNAFE
AEBZKAIEN SR T AN
BREE BER-_ZT—-NF=A
=t—BR-T—tF=ZA=t—
BRAFERETAK
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar
agreements

Gross

amount of

recognised

financial

Type of financial assets assets

SREERA

Accounts receivable due EHEER 255

29 BIRREERAFES)

(2 EHTRMEERTBMAE

Gross
amount of
recognised
financial
liabilities
offset in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
Raa
ABRRR
i
ERILH
BELE
$000

T

() FEH  BRFEXIZHHELUS
BURZEREE

As 31 March 2018
RZE-NEZA=1-R

Net amount
of financial
assets
presented
inthe  Related amounts not offset
consolidated in the consolidated statement
statement of financial position
of financial Collateral Financial
position received  instruments  Netamount

&a TERGRHBRRR
HBRRE EH EBLE
2hzeR EL

BETH gl SRIE
$1000 $1000 $000

T T Fr

from clearing houses 3,338,502 (3,198,127) 140,375 - (140,375) -

Accounts receivable due EUEE 2B
from clients 13,114,504 (2,360,461) 10,754,043  (10,753,674) - 369
16,453,006 (5,558,588) 10,894,418  (10,753,674) (140,375) 369

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIEBEERAFEEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(2) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (g) EETHEERSRMEE L)
(Continued)
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable () IR BFHIBNTHRELUR
master netting arrangements or similar BORCZEREEE)

agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2017
tE=A=1-H
Gross
amountof  Net amount
recognised of financial
financial assets
EWIES presented
Gross  offsetinthe inthe Related amounts not offset
amountof  consolidated  consolidated  in the consolidated statement

recognised statement statement of financial posttion
financial of financial of financial Colateral Financial
Type of financial assets position position receved instruments  Netamount

Accounts receivable due BUEERZER
from clearing houses 1,801,289 (1,761,275) 40,014 - (40,014) -
Accounts recelvable due EURPZER
from clients 7,687,502 (1,345,034) 6,342,468 (6,341,575) - 893
9488791 (3106309 6382482  [BMISTH ({00 893
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements

29 BIRREERAFES)

(p) BETRMEERTHMEERD)

(i) FIEH - RFEXIZHHELUS
BURZEREE

As 31 March 2018
RZE-N§=A=1-H
Gross
amountof  Netamount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assets offset presented
Gross in the inthe  Related amounts not offset in
amountof consolidated consolidated the consolidated statement of
recognised  statementof  statement of financial position
financial financial financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged instruments  Netamount
Raa
ABRRR &a ERRGRUBRRR
Bz  HERR% EH2RBeR
ERAER  2lle8R 2
SHAEE BEAE BETH gl SRIE
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Accounts payable due EREERZER
to clearing houses 3,376,734 (3,198,127) 178,607 (140,375) - 38,232
Accounts payable due ERZEZER
to clients 3,301,858 (2,360,461) 941,397 - - 941,397
6,678,592 (5,558,588) 1,120,004 (140,375) - 979,629
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIEBEERAFEEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (g) EETHEERSRMEE L)
(Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) TS - LFERBLTHRBELU
enforceable master netting arrangements or BNRzEMAEE)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2017
tE=A=1-H
Gross

amountof  Net amount

recognised of financial

financial liabilities

assets offset presented
Gross in the inthe  Related amounts not offset in
amountof  consolidated  consolidated  the consolidated statement of

recognised  statementof  statement of financial posttion
financial financial financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabiities position position pledged  instuments  Netamount

Accounts payable due ERESRER
to clearing houses 1,848,350 (1,761,275) 87,075 (40,014) - 47,061
Accounts payable due ERREZER
to clients 1,767,756 (1,345,034) 422,722 - - 422,722
3,616,106 3,106,309) 509,797 (40,014) - 469,783
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position”, as set out above, to the accounts
receivable and accounts payable presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position

29 IR BREERAFEEE

(p) BETRMEERTHMEERD)

(i) TRAMGEVHERREREIN 22
MEERSMEBEZFHE (ML
) RGEM B RRET 2 FE
UK BR TR FE 1 BR TR Z $TBR

Net amount of financial assets after wnEatiRss e e R E A
offsetting as stated above FER 10,894,418 6,382,482
Financial assets not in scope of W IR S TR [E 2
offsetting disclosure TREE 991,439 1,406,201
Impairment losses BEEE (331) (331)
11,885,526 7,788,352
Net amount of financial liabilities after mEaiRiEE e aE
offsetting as stated above FER 1,120,004 509,797
Financial liabilities not in scope of WIE S T [E 2
offsetting disclosure TRIBE 585,121 664,399
1,705,125 1,174,196

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities granted
by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities
and futures broking amounted to $14,960,000,000 (2017:
$12,060,000,000). As at 31 March 2018, the subsidiaries of
the Company have utilised $6,434,885,000 of these aggregate
banking facility (2017: $4,021,000,000).

BABRGEMREBRAR | —F—+/ —/\FFH

30 HAREE

RMERR - ARARIRUEEFTHFLBPELL
BB AR BRAMEIRG ZRTHE
K4 4258 14,960,000,000 7T ( =& —+
# :12,060,000,00070) Z A RIER - R =
T-NFZA=+—8 KRR ZHBEAF
BEAZFRITRIE 2% 2 6,434,885,0007T
(ZZ—+4% : 4,021,000,0007T) °
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30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

31

170

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did not
consider that any claim would be made against the Group
under any of the guarantees. The Group has not recognised any
deferred income in respect of the guarantees as their fair value
cannot be reliably measured and the transaction price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

30 HAREE )

31

REE K - §$WHEJLETW*1%£$EI
REEMARNOEE TN - ARERZA
ETREAFFERRZHERET E’&Z$EII
B FRREREMETEA -

EXRBEALRS

BHBREAL MBS REBEALAR
5N AEEITE THEABMEALT S

(a) TEEEASHMH
AEBTZERABZFHM(BENES

PR ERRA R B E SR KM O E RS
TEeEFMEEXN 2B

Directors’ fees EEMe 572 545
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He - AL REYET 11,727 12,861
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAT 4,024 1,170

Contributions to Mandatory miES I
Provident Fund 74 110
16,397 14,686

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

FrEaRREt Al B TR (REE6(0)) °
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXRBEAXTRZ#®)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) EERRESHTHEERNER

(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with

directors
Yip Mow Lum and Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing,
his connected his connected Wilson and his Ling Kwok Fai,
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities Yu Yun Kong Joseph
ERMR THEWR Bk
ERAZR HpERR HpEER REBEER RERI REE
Relationship with Director of Director of Director of Director of Director of
the Company the Company and the Company and the Company and the Company the Company
entities connected entities connected entities connected
to director to director to director
BANFZBE ARIERREEE AARESREES ARESREES YN YN £
it BhEER EBEEE
Terms of the loan
LECE
Terms of the loan Repayable on demand Repayable on demand Repayable on demand Repayable on demand Repayable on demand
-ERBRERAR RRERER BRERER RRERER RHRERER RRERER
- Facilities granted
-BR/BE
-IPO loan 2,000,000,000 100,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
-ERDFEEER
- Margin loan 500,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
-FRER
- Interest rate
%
-IPO loan 1.18%-2.28% 0%-2.48% 0%-2.28% 1.38%-2.28% 1.58%-2.28%
-ERDFEEER
- Margin loan 2.5% - Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollar Hong Kong Dallar 4.88% per annum 4.88% per annum
Dollar Prime Rate Prime Rate plus Prime Rate plus
plus 5% per annum 5% per annum 5% per annum
-FRER 25 ERTREENE AREENE BnREENE 4.83% 488%FH%
Yk TE%ERE To%EHIE
- Security Marketable securities Marketable securities Marketable securities Marketable securities Marketable securities
-5 BEES EER5 BEZH BEER EER5

BAEHSSMEEMFRALR | —F—+/ —/\FF#H
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXRBEAXTRZ )
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with b)) EENHEEEZEREEERNERX
directors (Continued) (%)

Yip Mow Lum and Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing,
his connected his connected Wilson and his Ling Kwok Fai,
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities Yu Yun Kong Joseph

ERAMR SRR Bk
AR HBERE HEERd RERERR #OH RER

Balance of the loan

EREs
- At1 Aprl 2016

-RZE-RERA-R

-1PO loan - 409,000 - - -
-BRLRBERR

- Margin loan 165,202,000 46,000 - - -
-HRER

- At 31 March 2017

and 1 April 2017
-RZE-tEZA=1-8

RZZ-tFNA-H
-IPO loan - 1,727,000 - - -
~ERDFEEEN
- Mrgin loan 109,923,000 - - - -
-HRER

- At 31 March 2018

-RZF-\§=R=1-H

-IPO loan - - - - -
~ERDFEEEN

- Meargin loan 281,671,000 - - - -
-HRER

Maximum balance
outstanding
REERALER
-During 2018
-RZE-)\E
-IPO loan 1,754,425,000 6,719,000 2,937,000 1,228,000 -
-ERORBEE
- Margin loan 282,756,000 766,000 17,000 370,000 -
-FEER

During 2017

-RI5-tF

-[POloan - 2,455,000 2,073,000 20,000 -
-BRARREER

- Margin loan 222,465,000 238,000 - 763,000 105,000
-FREH
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

@

(i

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $281,571,000
(2017: $111,650,000) and accounts payable due to
related parties of $28,422,000 (2017: $26,062,000)
respectively which was arising from the Group’s
ordinary course of business in securities broking,
margin financing and commodities and futures
broking. Accounts receivable/payable from/to related
parties are set at the same terms as those normally
offered to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were rental
and office management deposits of $10,639,000
(2017: $10,749,000) which had been made to related
companies owned by a director of the Company.
These amounts were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable upon expiry of the respective leases.

(d) Other transactions with related parties

0

Brokerage income of $475,000 (2017: $819,000) and
interest income of $5,275,000 (2017: $4,295,000)
was received from the directors of the Company,
their close family members and related companies
owned by a director of the Company in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business of securities broking,
commodities and futures broking, margin and IPO
financings, and bullion trading. Commission rates are
set at the same level as those normally offered to third
party clients.

Rental expenses of $39,660,000 (2017: $34,853,000)
paid to related companies owned by a director of the
Company, were charged at a rate mutually agreed
between the parties involved with reference to market
rates.

RABSEREMABLAF | =T L/ —/\FFH

31 EXBEALIRZ®)

(c) EHEEEAL &R

U)

(i)

R-ZZE—NF=ZA=+—H "~
AEBEEKEEALZZERS
281,571,000 . ( = & — £ F
111,650,0007T ) M ESBEE A T2
BRFA28,422,000 (ZE—+ 45 -
26,062,0007T) * D RIZK B ANEE
AEERFIHEIT 2B HLL -~ fF
BB LB ELLET -
FEURREIE AT 2 IRk TERTREIEA
THRFE-RREHTE=AKEFA
&SRR o

RZZE—-NE=A=+—0 " H
hEWRIE  Ee RTEMN RIEF
10,639,000 L ( Z T — &
10,749,0007T) BRM AR T —%
EEmACBEEARSINZEAS R
WAEEERES - WEREAER
R e 8 - WA H E R 408 m b

BE -

(d) EBEALZEMRS

U)

(i)

AU A475,000L (= —+F ¢
819,0007t ) & % 8 W A 5,275,000
TT(ZZF—+4F : 4,295,0007T) J5 7
EEREREBPETESLL B
mMEEEL FREEE R AR
EMEARIBES R FEBEMMAA
NAIESE BEZREKE AR
Rl—REREF 2 BEEQRUER -
BEeRETR—RAE=FEFIR
2 FARKF -

EN—BARRESHE 2 BER
7z 4% 39,660,000 (=&
— 44 : 34,853,0007T ) JHIRET 4
F2EmGHEER BT 2HE
T o
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31

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Other transactions with related parties (Continued)

(i)

(V)

174

The total future minimum lease payment under non-
cancellable operating lease on properties are payable
to related companies owned by a director of the
Company as follows:

31 EXBEEALIRZ#)

(d) HRABALZHMRS (#)

(i)

RN AHEEEROM Y R EN
ARR—REFHRACEERFZ
ARRERERIBLRRINT

Within one year —FR 39,660 39,660
After one year but within five years —FRERAER - 39,660
39,660 79,320

On 13 June 2012, Bright Smart Securities International
(H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new loan
facility letter with China Finance (Worldwide) Limited
(“CFW?”), a company which is 100% beneficially owned
by Mr. Yip, for provision of a revolving loan facility of
$600,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for BSSI’s general
working capital purposes. No interest expense was
incurred during the year (2017: $4,000). The facility
bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is
unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31 March
2018, no drawing was made (2017: Nil) under the
facility.

On 31 March 2011, 16 June 2014 and 2 September
2014 the Company entered into three loan facility
letters with World Mix Limited (“WML”"), a company
which is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yip, for
provision of a $310,000,000, $80,000,000 and
$50,000,000 revolving loan facility respectively
from WML to the Company for the Company’s
general working capital purpose. Interest expense
of $2,689,000 was paid to WML during the year
(2017: $4,000). The first loan bears interest at HIBOR
plus 2.25% while the other two loans bear interest
at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum. All of them are
unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31 March
2018, no drawing was made (2017: Nil) under the
facility.

V)

RIE——FNA+=8 " BI&F
FEBR(EB)BARAR(BRAFE
5| KRR zEE2EHBAR)
BB (BEE) BRAE ([
B BEEE2EERZHBEZ
NEN B~ ERBE R
NA A B RS ARA 5 M
& 3= B F Rt & 600,000,000 7T © A
E—REEES - FRTERPEH
FBIAFMBRAZI(ZE—1+F
4,0007T) » BEFIEBBIRITEER
B2 75% FFIEETE - BEER
NERENRER RIZT—N\F=
A=+—8  HERZEHERR
EAFBE(ZE—+tF ) -

R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—H =%
—ENATABE-Z—NER
AZH  ARRHEHBRRA A
([t | EXRE2EEZHAZ
NEDEIERME YT - RBE
Bt mm AR R D BIREERER
&b & 310,000,000 7T * 80,000,000
7t % 50,000,000 7T © AE— & &
BES - FAMEHRINFEHE
2,689,0007T ( =& — 4 : 4,000
T0) o F—EERILBERITRAE
HEM225% F F Rt B - E&
MEEZIREBRITREREM
275%FFREE  2EE AEIR
BRBEREREERE RZZT—N\F
—A=+—H BERDTHNEHE
BME(ZZE—+F:F)-
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32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 QAREEZEBBRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2018

R-B-NE=A=+—H

Non-current asset FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHEBRARIZIEE 19,887 19,887
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 19,887 19,887
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries YNGR O 1,577,755 1,592,222
Other receivables, deposits and H el zrig -

prepayments e RIENFRIA 323 -
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEHEY 6,206 796
Total current assets REBEEHAE 1,584,284 1,593,018
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables HAb R FUE 97 113
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN NG EE] 57,095 311,411
Bank loans RITER 241,000 -
Current taxation BNHEARR 1A 261 800
Total current liabilities HREEEAEE 208,453 312,324
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,285,831 1,280,694
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,305,718 1,300,581
EQUITY s
Share capital &7 26 509,189 509,099
Share premium A1 (B 26 738,020 737,677
Share option reserve B R 26 7,399 8,341
Retained profits RE & 26 51,110 45,464
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,305,718 1,300,581

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on LEEGR _ZT— N \FRA-+=HH#AET
23 May 2018 BrETE

Directors

=

Yip Mow Lum Hui Yik Bun
B FHEW

BABRGEMREBRAR | —F—+/ —/\FFH 175



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SH SN - ABTTIIR)

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING

34

176

COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2018 to be
New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated on
6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr Yip Mow
Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers?

Amendments to Share-based payment: Classification and

HKFRS 2 measurement of share-based payment
transactions’
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration’
HKFRS 16 Leases?

1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently available
to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the
standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 September 2018. The Group
may also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that
financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and
the classification of financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 on
a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the exemption
from restating comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1
April 2018.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

—  The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

—  For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be recognised in
other comprehensive income without recycling.

The Group has assessed that, except for accounts
receivable due from cash clients and margin clients,
which will be reclassified as financial assets measured
at FVTPL upon adoption of HKFRS 9, its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost will continue with
this classification and measurements upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ] FERRRETRE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued) g

EEMBBEEEAEIR  EHITH
(%)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

DENETE(E)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently
classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in
equity instruments which the Group is required to reclassify
the investment at FVTPL. The Group will recognise any
fair value changes in respect of these investments in profit
or loss as they arise. This will give rise to a change in
accounting policy as currently the Group recognises the fair
value changes of available-for-sale equity investments in
other comprehensive income until disposal or impairment,
when gains or losses are recycled to profit or loss in
accordance with the Group’s policies set out in notes 2(f).
This change in policy will have no impact on the Group’s
net assets and total comprehensive income, but will
increase volatility in profit or loss. Upon the initial adoption
of HKFRS 9, fair value gains of HK$3,977,000 related to
the available-for-sale investments will be transferred from
the fair value reserve to retained profits at 1 April 2018.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s credit risk
to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). Based on the assessment
completed to date, the Group expects that this will not
have a significant impact on the Group’s net assets.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued)

180

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

@

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure either a 12-month expected
credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on the asset and the facts and circumstances. The Group
expects that the application of the expected credit loss
model will result in earlier recognition of credit losses.
Based on a preliminary assessment, if the Group were
to adopt the new impairment requirements at 31 March
2018, no material impairment loss at that date would
be recognised as compared with that recognised under
HKAS 39 given most of financial instrument carried at
amortised cost are either placed with bank with high credit
rating or counterparties with strong credit background
and settlement history. As a consequence, no material
adjustment is expected to be made to the opening
balances of net assets and retained profits at 1 April 2018.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements
relating to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness under
HKAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting.
The Group currently has not applied hedge accounting
and therefore it is expected that there is no impact to the
Group.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 34 RBE-ZE—N\E=ZA=+—H
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS HEFEFECHEBEERERZE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE A MEARRBARELEZE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued) 369
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers ERAMBREERNEISH  BEFEYN

WA
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for EEM RS ERFI5REIERARPEY
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS WA 2 EHESR - ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ#&%ﬁ,ﬁlj%ﬁ?ﬁ
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, BWENRIR AW AKER| - HESHEDFE18
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and B Hﬁz)\(@?ﬁﬁ%if%&ﬁ{ t AR 755 BT EE AR /Y
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, WA R E SRS 115 - @28d ,Z’J(J
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction BEEALORAN SRR L) - BiFE
contracts. Based on the assessment completed to date, the BT H R z]&;%la;gk%ﬁaﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂq
Group has identified the following areas which are expected to SEENTE
be affected:
(@ Timing of revenue recognition (a) WARRKE

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in ZIKE@E’]H&)\EEE BUR M 5E2(0) B 55 -

note 2(p). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of CRM R E AN A R R RS

services is recognised when the service is rendered. H%E@E% °

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the RIEEBTEREEDEI55%  WAR

customer obtains control of the service in the contract. EEWMEASATIRFEHIEE| R ER o

HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the EBPIEIREYERF 1S ETE T HIARTE

service is regarded as being transferred over time: R HIE R AR R ER A =I5

)  When the customer simultaneously receives and () EBFPEBEEAZRRFIEGNHE
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s EEEBAMEHAT R
performance, as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances (i EEENELHAENEREFESR
an asset (for example work in progress) that the EWwA SRS EHNEE
customer controls as the asset is created or (WRfEZETIFZ )RS
enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create (i) ERMNEBEOTRIMAE—IEIH
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and EEANEZERBEANEE A @
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for BEERMES BIFERKRNELN D
performance completed to date. BASE PRI THER] o
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

182

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(@ Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or
service at a single point in time, being when control has
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only
one of the indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs. The Group has
assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely to
have significant impact on how it recognises revenue.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(f), currently the Group classifies leases
into operating leases.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e.
at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and
to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 28(b), at 31
March 2018 the Group entered certain future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, the lease
commitments payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date is amounting to HK$15,263,000. Some of these amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The standard offers different transition options
and practical expedients, including the practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient
is chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after
the date of initial application. If the practical expedient is not
chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its decisions
about which existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the
new definition. Depending on whether the Group elects to adopt
the standard retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at the date of initial application, the
Group may or may not need to restate comparative information
for any changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
Currently the Group accounts for certain procurement contracts
as lease arrangement and classified it as finance leases. The
Group has not yet decided which transition approach to be
taken.
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Five-year Financial Summary
LFEPBRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=R=1-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Results £ ZZ-\f& —ZT—+tf T F ZE-1fF CZT-QfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEr TEr TEr T

Revenue WA 944,440 562,517 675,967 516,785 410,380
Profit before taxation BRERTER 600,592 314,589 383,693 256,684 196,600
Income tax FiEHi (84,473) (42,679) (58,218) (38,307) (29,853)
Profit for the year FRE 516,099 271,910 325,475 218,377 166,747
Other comprehensive income At 2 ENE 2,241 (13,369) 15,120 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZANGLE 518,340 258,541 340,595 218,377 166,747

As at 31 March
R=A=t+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Assets and Liabilities BEREE “B-\& —Zt+F -EF -E-1IfF C"ZT-MfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEr TEx TEx TiEx

Current assets FEEE 12,425457 8402230 5431923 17773334 4520494
Non-current assets FREEE 213,647 120,723 261,148 127,273 93,149
Total assets BEBE 12,639,104 8522953 5693071 17,000,607 4,613,643
Current liabilties TEERE 10,002,103 6323168 3655590 16,159,729 3,609,196
Non-current liabilities EraaE 39 94 137 224 73
Total liabilities BfEfE 10,002,142 6323262 3655727 16,159,953 3,609,269
Net assets BEE 2,636,962 2199691 2,037,344 1740654 1,004,374
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